
I'OPtJLAR MEGA MOI'ORS (INDIA) PRTVA'IE LIMITED. KUTTUKARAN CENTRE. MAMANGALAM. KOCHI - 682025
STATEMENT OF TOTAL INCOME FOR THE ASSESSMENT YEAR 20I9.2O

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2019 . PAN: AABCP6IoSH / DC|T/ACIT CIR 4fl).KOCHt

INCOME FROM BUSINESS 2019-20

Profit as per Statement ofProfit a.nd Loss 16,44,|,092

Add: lnadmissibles

Disallowance u/s 404(9) - Contributioo to Employee Benevolent Fund
Donation
lnte.est on MSME Dues

Loss on inhaday hansactions(As per Annexure III)
ROC Fee for increase in authorised share capital
Provision for Cratuity
Provision fbr Diminution in Value oflnvestrnents
lnterest on shortfall ofadvance tax
tND AS adjustments charged to Profit and loss
Expense incuned on exempt income -29lo of dividend income disallowed u,/s l4A
CSR Expenditu.e

Depreciation considered separately

LcssiAdmissibles
Depreciation as per IT Rules

Interest income considered s€p€rately

Deduction under section 35D is claimed as per ITAT decision in 154 ITD 103
Pro{it on sale ofinvestment considered separalely
Profit on sale ofasset
Dividend income considered s€parately

Income from Brsillcss
In(omc fronl Capital gain

(a)Sale oflnvestments - Ouoted Shares

Long term Capilal gajn on sale ofquoted shares(As pe!.Annexure l)
Less:Long term Capital Loss ofAY 2016-17

(b)Sale ofln - Unquoted Shares

Consideration on sale ofinvestment in Loginomic Tech Solutions Private Limited(As p€r Annexue ll-(a))
Net Short term Capital loss on sale ofquoted investments (As per Annexurc Il-(b))

l\( o\tt.t I;RoNI OTIIER SOI;R('IiS
Dividend income

Less:Exempt Us l0(34)

lnterest income

Gross'fotal Income
Deductions under Chapter VIA

Deduction u/s 80 C - Donstion paid to K P Paul Foundation - Rs. 10,75,000
(PAN _ AAB',rK38l8t\t)

'fa\able Income

For Popular Mega Motors ndia

2,76,109
26,000

r,08,360
100

1,50,000

1,i,79,135
24,00,000

6,17,t71
34,21,79t

I,574
10,75,000

2,82,42,503 4,75,58,348

3,26,t9,367
5,32,742

30,000
52,s9,064
4,66,198

78,682

28,466

2ti 166)

56,33,333
(4,02,920)
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Add: Health and Educarion cess rO 4ozo

Totoltax due
trss: Tax Collected at Souc€r
!€!!.: Tax Deducted at Souc€r

Lgss Advance Ta,x

5,34,62,7t3
64,t5,526

5,98,78,238

23 95,130

6,22,13.368

54,12t
1,50,44,588

4,1r,14,659
5,00,00,000
(28,25,341)

6,80,574

----p!4!!68)

Addlnterest u/s 234 C
Refund

THE FEDERAI BANK LIMITED
I 3 800200100 145

CURRENT ACCOUNT

682M90r8

FDRL000l380

2 Shares acquircd under portfolio investment scheme is tre3ted as income Aom capital gair|s as per ac.ounting policy of lhe company and CBDT circutat 612016 dald
29.2.2016

3 Crrry Forw.rd of L,os!

Nature of Loss Op€ning Balance Adjustrnent during year
Balance carry
forward

[,ong Term Capilal Loss 20t6-t7 t,63,669 (28,466) 1,35,203

The rale of income lax @ 3070 is considered as per ParaSraph E in Part III ofFiEt Schedule of Finance Act 20l8 i.e., tumover for lhe financial vear 2016-17 was
4 Rs.572.57 crores which is more than Rs. 250 Crorcs.

5 Ind AS adjusrment charged to Profit & Loss

Item

Rent included in Rent - Note no.25) 19,88,280
lnlcrcsl Income on rent included io Inlerest on rent its - Note no.25) (18,45,981)
Loss on accounl oflnvestments at Fair value (included in Olher non income - Nole no.25 'I,99,492

Allowance for credit loss 24,80,000
Total 34,21,191

6 Provision for lelve enc&shmeot is nol disallowed bas€d on the decision ofcff (Appeil) in &sscssees own clse in AY - 2ol0-l I where 6e same is allo\ ed as a
deduction.

Disallo*'ance u/s 14A is not attract€d in the view ofSupreme Coun decision io CIT v/s Sinlex Industrios Ltd 93 t xmann cas€ 24 SC whcre the investment eaming
7 tax fiee income was msde out ofown funds io the form ofcapital and ReseNes. However, 2olo ofthe exempl income is disallowed to covcr any possible indirect

expendilure.

8 TCS is irl respect ofvehicles purchased snd capitalised as fixed assets.

For Popular r\4ega Motors (lndia) pvt. Ltd
For Popular Mega Motors ( ia) Pv
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l-sotement stowinc Comoutetion oflrne .ferm Caoitrt Gains

Lonp lcrm CrpitrlCsin

Sale consideration on slle of I,500 equily shares of invesEnent in
Manappuram Financ. Limited
Less:Cost of acquisition

t ng Term CspitrlGrio

Cost ofAcquisitlon l! lvorked oul 13 per s€ctlotr 55(2xrc) ss below:
i) Cosl of Ac.{iuisition ofE4uity Shares

ii) t wer of-
A) .Th€ Fair Market Value of Equity

Shares as on 31.01.2018 1,52,180
B) The Full Value ofcomideratifi 1,80,647

Cost ofAcqubitlon r! lEr S€ctio. 55(2xrc) hlshcrof(i) ard
(ii)

1,80,647

1,52,180

28,466

r.51,896

t,52,t 80

1,52,180

I Quoted Price on NSE Index as on 31.01.2018 is considered as FMV in respect ofEquity Shares purchased before 01.02.2018.

For Popular Mega Mot (lndia) Ltd. For Popular lr4ega Motors (lndia) pvt. Ltd.
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Shorl Term Clplul Grin

a) Sale of investments in Loginomic Tech Solutions Private Limited

Sale consideratiod (10400 equity sharcs @ 791.67 per sh6rc)
lBssicost of Acquisition
(50,0o,00o. I 0,400120,0@)

Shorl term Capltel crln

b) Sale of investments in Quoted equity shares

For Popular Mega Mot s (lndia Pvt. Ltd.

82,33,333 (Date ofsale loth July 2018))
26,00,000 (Date ofAcquisition 30th March 2017)

\"-

irector
Man cto:'n
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Nam€ ofscrip
Date of

ecqulsition No.of Unias Cost ofrcquisltion Da(e ofssle No.of Units Srlc v.lu€ Short Tsrm
Crin(lrss)

Mahindra Cre Automot 26 04.2018 250 61,537.53 13.07.20r8 2s0 64,091.05 2,5s3.52
CESC 3 r.08.2017 500 5,09,884.96 27 .07 2018 250 2,35,388.65 (19,553 83)
CESC t2.092017 500 s.27,466.61 27.07.20t8 500 4,70,771.32 (56.689 35)

StarCement 30.10 20r7 I,000 I,19,031.40 02.08.2018

06.08.20t8
94

906
10,759.02

1,04,376.70

(429.93)
(3,465 75)

Panama Petrochem t9.12.2017 t,500 3,47,550.39

27 .08 20t8
28.08 20r8
29.08 20t8
30.08.20t 8

31.08.2018

03.09.20t8

250
250
250
2s0
ll4
386

34,61 t.84
35t46 82

1s577.10

34769.14

t5740.52
53471.50

(23,313 23)
(22,718.25t
(22,347 .3 7)

Q3,tss.97)
(10,673 3t )
(35,964.80)

LT Foods Ltd 20.12.2011 4,000 3,50,449.80

27 .48.2018
28.08.2018

29 08.20r8
l0 08 20t 8

31.08.2018

03 09 2018

800

800

800

400

800

400

44,236.50

441t2.05
44,508 s8

22113.40

43988.40

22t81.33

(25,8s3.46)
(25,917 9t)
(25.58r.38)
(r2,91t58)
(26,10r.56)
(12,863.65)

Gravita India Ltd 08.01.2018 I.500 2,74,878.20

27.08.20t8
28.08.20t8
29.08.2018

30.08.20t8
03.09 2018

400
400

400

2N
r00

56,221.26

56334.45

56954.30

29t45.8t
t4336.80

(t7,073.59)
(t6,956.40)
(r6,346.55)
(7,sM.62)
(3,988.4t)

Kitex Garments 23.02.2018 5,000 l t,98.785 46 25 04 20t8 1000 2,43,848.89 4,091 80
Cella Space Ltd 13.02 20t9 78.t 4.367 35 13.02.2019 49 268 99 (3 97)

Totrl (1,02,9r9,5{)

Anoexure ll
lst.lem€nt Showinq Comoutetiotr otshort Te.m Csoltrl Gsitrs

Short term Capital lrss

s6,3J,333

r4.0-2.920.1)0r

For Popular Mega Motors (lndia) pvt. Ltd.



Crlcul iloo of Prolit/lolr oB lrtr.drv tr.tr!.cdoni

Reconcilirtion

Profit on sale ofsale ofshort term investm€nt considered sepemtely in Memo
Prolit on ssle ofsale ofl,ong term investment considered saprately in Memo
Effect of adj ustrnent in InnS tcrm Capital Gain u,/s 55(2xac)
l.ess:Lss on intraday transaction
Profit on sale oflnvestments as p€r Profit and loss account

For Popular Mega Mo (lndia t. Ltd.

lvla

For Popuiar lr4ega Motors (lndia) pvt. Ltd

rector

52,30,413

28,46
284

100

52,59,064

cto

Nsmc ofscrip
Drtc of

rcquisitiotr
No.ofUnits Colt of

acquisitioD
Dste ofsste

No.of
Units

Ssle vsluc Sbort T.rm
Grid(lo3!)

Tata Motors 1E.06 2018 20 6.216.s0 t8.06.2018 20 6.206.14 r0.36
Liquid Benchmark ETS 30.r 1.20r8 535 5,35,089.26 30.1l.2018 515 s,3s,000 00 89 26

Totrl 99.62II--I
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Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Privst€ Limited
Bslance Sheet

(All amouft in INR millions)

Pa rticuh rs

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and cquipment
Capital work-in-progress
Goodwill
Other lntangiblc assets

Financial ass€ts

Investments

Other financial assets

Loans

Defened tax ass€ts (net)
Income Tax assets (net)
Other non-cunent ass€ts

Total non-current assets

Current sssets
Inventories

Financial assets

Investments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalcnts
Loans

Other financial assets

Other current ass€ts

Ass€ts held for sale (Refer Note 38)
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and lirbilities
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total Equity

Liabilities
Non-current lirbiliaics
Financial liabilities

Borowings
Provisions

Defened tax liabilities (neo
Income ta\ liabilities (nct)
Total ron-current lirbilities

Curreot lixbilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Provisions

Other currcnt liabilities
Total current Iiabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Signifi cant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofthe
balance sheet

"'FfPTSfiY#'Aittb$t",
Charterdd A untants (FRN 010625S)

As !t
3l Msrch 2019

As at
3l March 2018

Note

2

2

3

3

4

5

ll
26

26

6

230.85 239.7 t

10.39

t.60

0.19

0.80

0.28

t28.67 36.85

45.4651.71

6.53

26.85 25.77

7

4s4.92

895.24

800.11

52.58

5.3E

359.9E

6t l.0r

799.8E

69.5t
5.58

85.00

1.57

9.50

4

8

9

l0

5

6

22.13

66.95

24.00

1,866.39 1,5E2.!3

1,9{2. r 0

t2 62.34

569.E4

50.00

354.06

632.19 .101.06

l3
l5
26
26

55.42

1.30

t.10
35.30

46.06

t7.02

hi

Sreen n PR (M. No.:213413)

63.01 96.12

1,097.66

E7

82

32

37

1,626.0{

2.321.31 1,912.10

lar ) Private Limited

it S n

Di

l3
t7
t4
l5
l6

2t9
169

I

137

995.33

130.75

138.52

l.0 t

t75.12

1,44t.32

I
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Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

(All amounts in INR millions)

Particulars

Income
Revenue Aom operations
Other income
Total income

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofthe statement of
profit and loss as per our report of even date attached.

For pSDy & Associates
Chartered A ountants (FRN 010625S)

Note
Year ended

3l March 2019
Year ended

3l March 2018

IE
l9

9,112.03

94.65

't,089.82

't2.02

Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Change in inventory in stock-in-trade

Employee benefi ts expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Prolit before tax

(Loss)/prolit before tax

Income tax expense

Current tax
Deferred tax charge/ (benefit)

Profit for the yesr attributable to oryners of the Company

20

2l

Other comprehensiye income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasuement ofnet defined benefit liability/ (asset).\. net oftax
Income Tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners ofthe Company

Earnings/(Loss)/ per share (face value of INR l0 each)

Basic (in INR)
Diluted (in INR)

11

23

24
,<

9,206.67

8,027.7 5

(r s6.26)

400.62

l19.88

28.24

622.03

7,101.84

6,235.2',1

(157.55)

321.88
'77.42

25.49

448.43

6,950.95

t64.41 r50.89

26

26

l6,l.,ll

62.2'7

(l1.44)

t50.89

50.6r

2.80

I13.58 91.49

t.48

0.52
I 14.54

22.88

22.88

97.49

19.50

t 9.50

I

Sreeniw
Managin

Place : Kochi
Date : 09.01.2O1q

san PR (M. No.:2t34I3)
g Partner
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for and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited
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POPULAR MEGA MOTORS ONDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED, COCHIN . 25
IND AS CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Particulars

For the Year
€nded

3lsl March'2019
(Amount in Rs) (Amount in Rs)

For the year ended
31 March 2018

I19.88
(0.08)

(24.69\
(5.26)

lo.47l
28.24

t64.41

't7.42

(0.06)

(0.1e)

(0.10)

1.2.4s)

25.49

r 50.89

242.04

(0.23)

(284.23)

(58.10)

31.55

251.00
(288.81)

(2e2.3s)

44.22

87.08
(28.96)

65. l0
(198.87)

14.41

36.14 18,1.39)

( r.e r)
(3.37)

10.39

( 17.35)

8.23

24.69

0.08

(44.68)

2.47

(6.2s)

(r0.25)

(0,5s)

0.10

0.19

0.06

(49.46)

7.25

(9.t2)

(5.24)

(27.10) (67.t6)

27.49

(4.50)

(9.31\
(22.80)

102.34

(l18.78)

(3.26)

(5.e3)

316.09

(71.42)

63 229.47

(t7.20)
75,l6

(22.08)

91.24

Cash flows from opersting actiyiti€s
Nel Profit as per profit and loss account
Adjustments for :

Finance charges

Dividend income from current non-trade investments
Interest income
Profit on sale of investments
Loss/Profit on sale ofProperty, Plant & Equipment
Depreciation and amortisation
Oper8titrg loss before working capitsl changes
Increase in trade receivables
Ilcrease in inventories
(Increase) / decrease in Other current assets

lncrease in other cunent liabilities
Cash generated from/ (used) in operotions
Taxes paid, net of refund received
Net cash generated from/ (used) in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in Shares

Investments in others
Changes in Capital Work-in-Progress
Other Non Current Asset

Proceeds from non current investments
lnterest received
Dividend received

Purchase ofProperty, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds fiom sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Loans & Advances
Net cssh used in investirg activities (B)

C Cash flows from Iinancing activities
Inter Corporate Loan received from Holding Company
lnter Corporate Loan extended to Subsidiary company
Other Long Term Bonowings
Long Term Liabilities
Short Term Bomowings

Interest paid

Net cash generated from financing activities ( C )

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivale[ts at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash uiyalents at the end of the ear

B

D
E

F 57.96 75.16
(refer to note 9 and l0 - Cash and Bank Balances )

The notes refened to above form an integral part ofthe
Iinancial statements refened to in our report of even date

': For PSDY & Associates
\-\

S

DIN:00018 27
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Populrr MGgr Moron (lndi.) Privrr. Limitcd
Notcs to thc finrncirl strtcmcdt3 (continucd)
(Allamounts in INR millions)

2 Propcrty, phtrt rnd cquipmcDt.nd ctpit.l work-itr-progrcss

Prrticulars Freehold
lrnd

Buildings * l'urniturc rnd
firtur.s

El.ctricrl
cquiPm.nl

Plrnt rnd
f,quipm.nt Motor V.hictc Computcr

Equipm.trt
Omcr

tquipmrnl
Totrl
(A)

Crpil.l Bork- itr -
progcrs (B)

Tot.l
(A+B)

Cross crrryingvrluc
Gross cr
Balarce al I 2011 9 t0 I3 t.09 27 36 0 7l 35 40 3t.99 271 188 240.26 0t4 240 40AddnronV(transfers) t2 49 459 03r 604 2t t0 369 045 49.26 r0.39 59 65Disposal 0.1| t5.62 ts73 014 15.87Bilrnc! rt 3l Mrrch 20lE 9.r0 141.58 31.84 r.03 41.44 38.07 2.33 213.79 I 244.18
Balancc at I A 20t 8 9. t0 l4158 3 t.84 I03 4t.44 38 07 6.40 2.33 273.79 l0 39 284 18Additionv(transfe6) 13.04 436 028 6.50 l].88 5.t I 0.71 44 47 44.4',1Disposal 0.60 t.4l 100 066 0lr 3 7',1 l0 39 l4 r6Assets classified as hcld for sale 9. t0 I5.78

24.88 24 88Brlincc rt 3l M.rch 2019 t40,8.1 35.60 46.53 50.96 11.45 2.93 289.62 289.62
Accumulrt.d D.precirtion

Brhnc. rt 3l Mirch 2017 1.97 3.48 0.40 9.40 1.20 0.80 20.48 20.48Depre.aatron for the year 240 401 0 15 3.54 t22t 1.68 047 24.53 24.53Disposal 0 0l to.92 l0 93 t0 93Brlrtrcc ,131 Mrrch 2018 1.31 7.55 0.54 6.77 r0.69 2.E9 1.27 34.08 3,1.0t

Balance al I A 20r8 '7.55 0.54 671 I0.69 289 t.21 34.08 34 08D€precialion for the year )44 447 010 3.92 )2.90 306 044 27 33Disposal 0.20 029 070 0.52 005 t76 1.76Assets classified as held for sale 088 088 088Brhnce rt 3l Mrrch 2019 s.93 I t.82 0.64 10.10 22.E9 5.43 1.66 5E-71

Cr
At 3l Mrrch 2019 1.3.1.91 23.7a 0.67 36. r.3 2t,07 6.02 1.28 230.85 210.85At3I M$rch 2018 9. r0 lJ9.2l 24.J0 0.48 34.61 21.39 3,5t 1.05 2t9.71 10.39 250.t0

6.40

___l
3.23

21.33

[-4,

58-77
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Popular Mega Motors (India) Privste Limited
Notes to the linancial statemeDts (continued)
(All amounts in INR millions)

3 Intangibles assets

Computer
software

Goodwill Total

Gross carrying value

Balance at I April 2017 0.28 3.20 3.48
Additions 0.20 0.20
Disposal

Balance at 31 March 2018 0.,18 3.20 3.68
Balance at I April 2018 0.48 3.20 3.68

Additions 0.21 0.21
Disposal

0.69 t.20 3.89
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at I April 201 7 0.14 0.80 0.94
Amortisati on for the vear 0.16 0.80 0.96
Balance at 3l March 2018 0.30 1.60 1.90
Balance at I April 201 8 0.30 t.60 1.90

Amortisation for the year 0.12 0.80 0.92
Balance at 31 March 2019 0.41 2.40 2.81

Carrying amounts (net)

0.28 0.80 1.08
At 3l March 2018 0.r9 r.60 1.79

I

I

ffi
& )

Additions/transfers

Balance at 3l March 2019

At 3l March 2019

\
o
c)
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Popular Mega Motors (lrdir) Private Limited
Notes to the financial strtemaras (cootinucd)
(All amounts in INR millions)

Ai 8t
3l March 2019

As rt
3l March 2018

Investrnents in Quoted Equity Instruments (valued al FMV), fully paid up

Investrnent in Mutual Fund (valued ar FMV)

Aggegate book value ofunquoted investments
Aggr€gaJe market value ofquotcd invgsunents
Aggregate book value ofquoted investrnents

5 Other financirl ,ssets

Curr.nt
Unsecured considered good
Rent and other deposits

Gua.rantee Commisssion rgceivable

Advances to suppliers

Intercst r€ceivable fiom a subsidiary

2.40

(2.40)

3.00

1.25

5.00

7.10I1.04

3.31

124.67 J6.85

I t4.25
14.42

t5.21

0.38

21.7 4

29.7 5

7.10

7.35

1.51

22,13 r.57

k
).$

\
s\

'x-r0d

4 lnv.stmcnt!

Non"current invcstment!, unquotcd

Itrvslmenls in prcIererrcc sharcs ol FWPL

Loginomic Tech Solutions Privale Limited
50000, lolo noncumulative rcdeemable and optio[ally convertible prefer€nc!

shares offace value ofRs.l0 each

Inve$ments in Equlqt shq.es at FWPL

Loginomic Tech Solutions Privale Limited
9600 equity shares ofRs.l0 esch (Acquired by conversion of preference shares)

Provision for Diminution in Value oflnvestments

Invcltmella in subsidioricr

Vision Motors Privsre LimiM
1,17,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each(Previous year 28,00,000 shaEs of
Rs.l0 each)

Inve3tment in Associates

Popular Auto Dealers Privare Limited
12500 (previous year : 12500 e{uity sharcs of fu. 100 each)

Nol Carrenl Inveslment$, Qaoted

23.50

t.25

xo
c)
-\
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Populrr Mcg. Motors (Itrdl.) Privrt. Llmited
Notcs lo thc fitr.oclal straamctrtl (cootitru.d)
(All amounts in INR millions)

6 Othcr.lrets
Non-culrcnt

Adwncd othar ,tan capltal Adeanca
Prepayments

Disputed tlxes
Balancc q,ith Statulory Aulhorities

Advances for capital goods

A, .t
3l Mrrch 2019

As it
3l M.rch 2018

9.88
9.t7
5.44

1.66

9.88
10.90

4.99

26.85 25-11

10.67

0.12

56. t6

4.75

0.19

4.57

66.95 9.S0

Populor Mcgr Motorr (Indi.) Privrte Limit.d
Notcs to thc finrEcirl statamctrts (contlduad)
(AIl afiounts in INR millions)

7 lDvatrtorics
(Valued al lower of cost and realislble value)
New vehicles

Used clrs
Sparcs and Ac..ssories
StocL ln lrantit
Goods in Transit - Vehicle

Goods in Tnnsit- Spare

311.12

0.21

102.59

406.4E

14.65

231.09

86.77

275.14

18.01

895.2.1 6l l.0l

4.42
4.42

799.88

t Trrda rcceiv.bler
Culrrlt
consid€rcd good -Secured

considercd good -Unsecured
Which have signific€nt incrsse in Crcdit Risk*
Credit impaiGd
Less: Allowance for exp€cted credit L.oss

Olhers

Nat tnd. raceivablcs

'No such classificltion done for previous ye3r

9 Crsh rtrd crsh equivalaot!

Balance with banks
- in curent accounls

- in Cash Credit Ac.lunts
Cssh on hand

Cheques in Hand

Crsh rod crsh aquivrl.Bt! itr brhnc. shect

Book overdmfo used for cash management purposes

Crsh .trd crsh aquivrlctrts ln ahe ltatcmetrt ofcasb tlowr

l0 B.nk bala[c.3
Deposit with Maturity more than thiae months

| | Loatrg

Non-currcnt
U rrsecurred, cons ideted good
Reot alld other deposits

Dues fiom rclated panies

Currctrt
Uosecuted, considered good

Advanc€ to Subsidi8ry

t5.29

6.90
6.90

7U.82

800.1r 799.88

800.1I 799.88

23.E6

20.17

3.81

4.15

30.46

21.73

3.08

14.31

52.58

52.s8

5.18

5.J8

51.7t

69.58

69.58

558

5.58

45.46

45.16

85.00

x()
:E

lo1,

\\:

0,r

51.7 t

85.00

Cullaot
Prepayments

Advanc! to staff

Other rec€ivable

t
//^e

1rd

94\

rs



Rcserves and surplus
Itcms ofother

Comprehensive
Incomc

Prrticulsrs
Sccurities
prcmium

Gcneral
reserve

Sh.ro
options

outstrndirg
tccount

R€tsincd
cirnings

Rem€ssurement of
tret delined benefit
liebility/ (asset),n€t

of tax

Totrl other €quity
rtlributrble to

equity holders of the
Comprny

Balance as at lst April20l7 7.09 2.19.,1E 256.57

Totrl compr.hansiva incoma for thr ycrr addad
3l Mrrch 20lt

Profit/ (Loss) for fte year

Other comprehensive income, net oftax
91.49 97.49

Totel comprehensive income 97.19 97.19

Brlence as st3l Morch 20lt 7,09 354.06346.97
Total comprch.nsiva itrcoma for tha pariod eDdcd
3l Nlrrch 2019

Profiy' (Loss) for th€ year

Other comprehensive incomc, net of tax
I I1.58

0.96

I13.58

0.96
Total comprahcnsivc itrcomG l13.s8 0.96 I l{.5{
Trsnsferred to R€tainad arrnings
Trrnssctions with ownels, racorded directly in
.quity
Contributions by rnd dist.ibutioN to otyttars

Conversion offinancial liability to equity 101.24 )01.24

Total contributions by rnd distributions to
t01.24 l0l 24

Brlance es at 31 Msrch 2019 .160.56 0.96 569.8{

Amount
BabDcc rs rt 3l M.rch 2017

Changes in equity shsre capital duriDg 20 I 7- I 8

As rt 3l Morrh 20lE

Changes in equity share capital during 2018- 19

As rt 3l M&rch 2019

12.35

62.31

50.00

s0.00

Popular M€ga Motors (lndia) Privat. Limiacd
Statement of Changes in Equity for the p€riod ended 31 M8rch 2019
(All amounts in INR millions)

A.E ul shsre cs

B Olher

2 General Reserva

General rcserve is used from time to time to tmnsfer profits from retaircd eamings for appropriate purposes

3 Retained earnides
Represents accumulatioo of retained eamings of earlier years

As per our report ofeven date attached

P0pulrr Mege l\lotors (lndi8) Privstc Limitcd

ffi
rtered A ountants (FRN 010625S)

\ ilip
n11, n PR (M. No.:213413) naging Di
aging Partner DIN:00018827

Shalet John
Director

DIN r 00018829

0g 01 ,0q

Transferred to retained eamings

Share based payment expense

Conversion offinancial liability to equity

101.21 7,09

Ioo

Thc dcscription oIthe trrtura and purpose ofcach rcsc a r{ithitr aqulty lt rs followi:
I Securities Premium

Represents premium arising oul ofissue of Equity shares 12,34,63t oflts.l0/- each al a pr€mium ofRs.82 during the FY 2018-19.

for and on behalfofthe Board ofDireclors of

PSDY & Associates

\\\



Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited
rr-otes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in INR millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

l2 Sharc capital

Authorised
Equity shares

Add: issued during the year

lssued, subscribed and paid-up

Equity shares

Add: issued during the year

Add: issued during the year

At the end ofthe year

'lotrl

Details of Share holdcrs holding more than

5oo shares of the CompanY

Popular Vehicle and Services [-imited

& Ass

As t|t ls al
3l rr-larch 2019 .ll ]latch 2018

Number ofshares Amount Numl)er ofsh{rcs Anlount

50,00.000

20,00.000

5 0.00,000 50.00

70.00.000 ?0.00 50,00,000 :(1.U0

49.99.643

11,1,1.638

50.00

20.00

50.00

t2.35

.19.99.6 ll 50.00

62,JJ,2 8l 62.3{

12.35

(,2.1'l

'% of
holding

{9,99,613 50.00

Reconcilation of shares outstarldillg at the beginning and at thc cnd of the reporting perio(l

Equity shares of lNR.l0 each fully paid-up

At the beginning ofthe year '19.99.61-1 50.00 't9.q9.6 1-l il) u0

Conversion of Corporatc Loan to Equity
12,3.t,638

62,31,28t

62 2lJl

Number ofsharcs

62.1{ {9,99,6{3 5{}.00

___ ,_122e,643
\ unrber of

shilres

i0.00

oh ol
holtling

6?.14.280 100% 49.99.642 r0096

Ca

o

CC

K0cfl I

sidAc

-t-

0
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Popuhr M€r Moton (Irdi.) P v.tc Limltcd
Not.s to th.linrncl.l rtrt.n.nt! (continu.d)
(All amounts in INRmillioDs)

13 Borro*iogg
Non-currant
*ctred
Tc'm loans from banks
Vchicle loans &orD Finarcial lmtiotions

Less: Amount included under'other fi nancials liabilities'

a

Popuhr Mega Motors (ltrdi.) privste Limited
Note! to tha financirl stat€merts (cortiruad)
(All anounts in INR millions)

As rt
3l Mrrch 2019

As rt
3l Mrrch 20tt

35.05

I I,OI

46.6
8.17

46.06 55.,12

567.94

27.0A

219.75

25.89

49.38

135. t0

85 00

49.36

46.20
I,t23.t0

25.44
I,O2t.2t

2s.89
1,O91.64 995.3J

b

Term loan ftom Kotak Mahindls Balk Limited is s€cued by ,irst charge on all existilg snd future curent assests / movable
Fixed Assets of the company situatcd in Kerala which are hnanoed by the banlq c;lsteral s€curity by way of e4uitable
mortgage of Immovable propedies of the Cordpany, Immovable Properties offte promoter Directon oi troiaing company ana
irnrnovable propenies ofthe Kutfukkaran TtadinS ventu€s, Person; Guarantee ofthe direclors ana promoter iirecton orue
holding company. The loan is repayable in monthly instollmenls ranging from 25 to 4g installments.

vehicle loans are secured by hy?o&ecltion ofthe vchicle fiDancad and personal guannt€e ofthe dire.tors of the company.
The loan is repsyable in monlhly ilstallmeflts ranging from I to 57 insta.Irnents.

shon tenD loan from Kolat MahiD&a Bank Limited is secured by first chaage on all existing and furure current assets /
movable Fixed Assets ofthe company situaM in K6ala which ar:e rmanced by them, Collateral security by way ofequitable
mortgage of Immovable properties of the company, Immovable Propenies oi the promoter Dtectors'of trotdlg cornpany,
Personal Cuarantee ofthe directors and promoter directors ofthe holding compaoy.
l'an from HDFC BaDk Limited is s€curEd by hr?otheoation of stock ard book debts of the mopany situated 8t chenn6i,personsl guaranlee of dire.tors of the company and pomoter directors of the bolding company & corporate guarantee of
Popular Vehicles and Servic€s Limited.

Loan from Yes Bank Limited is s€cured by lein of booked vehicle and personal guarantee of directors of lhe company.

L'6n fiom Induslnd Balk Limited is se.ured by way ofh]?othecation of vehicles finslc.d by rhem, persogl guamntEe of
directors ofthe compatry a[d aorporale guaraotee ofpopular Vchicles atrd Servic€s Limited.
Lan fiom DBs Bank Limited is s€cued by First charSe by way ofhpothecatio! ofvchicles fnanc.d by therb and personal
guamntee of Directors.

L8n from state Bark of lndia is secued by first charge by way of hypothecslion of the stock and rec€ilables of vehicles
r-manced by lhcrn including lhe advance rernittancr to Tata Motors limiteo out of the fundr released by thern, personal
guarantee of direrlors of the campaoy and Promotg directoas of the holding compary and corporate guarantee of'popular
Vehicles ad Sdvic€s Limitcd.

Loan from Tata capilal Financial services Limitet is secul€d by first charge on pr€sent and future stock hnanc€d by thern,
tlale.rsonal guarantee ofthe Directors of the company and promoter direoton of the holding company.

The unsecured 'frade advarces from Bank and NBFC. are guaranreed.by tfie p€rsonal guarantee of the Directors
/r' ' "':.

1-]l

g

k

Currcot

Sacurcd
Short term loan from banks
Cash credit and ovgdraft facilities from bank
Shon lerm losn from fitrancial institlrtion
Culrent Manr'iti€s of long tcrm borrowilgs
Intercorporate LosDs

Untccurad
Intercorporate Lrons
Short terD loan fiom bank
Short term loan ftom fiDancisl institution

634.59

72.79

205.80

25.44

Sacurcd brnk loads

over&aft facilities from banks carry inter€st ranging between g.35yo -9.75% cooputcd on a monthly basis on the adual
arnount utilised and are repayable on dcrnand. Thcs€ are seoured by pari passu charge by way of hypotheoation ofstock a,,d
book debts .

d

I'
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Popolrr Megr Motors (Indis) Prlvste Limited
Notcs to the fi[rtrciil ltrtements (continuad)
(All arnounts in INR millions)

CurrcIlt
Current mafurities of long-term borrowings
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Corporate Guarantee Commission payable
Interest on inter corporale loan payable
Dues to creditors for expenses and others
Dues to creditors for capit l goods

l5 Provilior!
Non-culrent
Proyision for emplq,ee benefrts
Net defined benefit liability - cratuity
ComperNated abseic€s

Curcra
Prol)ision for ernployee beneJils

Provision for gratuity
Compensated absenoes

17 Trf,de p.yrbles
Outstanding dues to Micro Sma[ and Medium Enterpris€s

A8 rt
3l Mrrch 2019

As at
31 M.rcb 20lt

25.44

2.88

2.42

0. t9
138.88

25.89

324
3.48

105 92

169.82 138.52

4.30
11.o2

1.32

.1.10

l0l
l.J2 l.0 t

78.37

44 3l
101 .7 t

43.13

8.69
0.1 I

t4 5t 16.18

t37.31 115.72

Outstanding due6 of caeditors other than MicIo Small and
Medium Enterpris€s 130.75

2t9.81 lf,0.7s
All trade payables arc 'current'

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterpris€s Developme Act, 2006 (,'the Acf,) based
on the infomation .vailable with lhe Company arc given below:
The principal aoount rernaining upaid to &ry supplier as at lhe eud ofthe year
The interest due on the principal r€rnaining outstanding as at the etrd oflhe year

The amount of intercst paid under the Act, along with the smounts of the payment made b€yond lhe appointed
day during the year

The amount of inter€st due and payable for the p€riod of delay in making palment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act
The amount of interst accrued and remaining unpaid at the end ofthc year

The arnount offi[ther interest remaining due and payable even in the succ€eding years, .-til such date whe! the
interest dues as above are actually paid to lhe small enterpris€, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
exp€Dditure under the Act

2.t4

217.74

2.14

0.1r

0.ll

l4 Othcr finsoci.l lirbiltica

l6 Other lirbilitici
Culretrt
Adlanca from Customers
Statulory dues payables

Group Gratuity PremiuD Paysble
Provision for interest on MSME dues

Other liabilities

I l.l8
5.84

/ts
sAs o

{ KocH I

\



Populsr Meg8 Motors (lndir) Privrtc Limitcd
Notes to the financial strtentenk (continued)
(All ahounts in INR millions)

l8 Revenuc from opcrations
Sslc of product!
Sales of New Vehicles
Sales Spares And Accessories
Sales ofused Vehicles
Other opcrating rcvctruer
lncome from schemes and incentives
Finance and insurance commission
Labour income

20 Purchsrcs of itock-in-arrde
New Vehicles

Used Vehicles

Sparc And Accessories

2l Changc ir invc[aories of stock-in-arsde
Opening stock
Closing stock

22 Employcc benefits erpe[se
Salaries and allowancts
Remuneration to DiEctor
Cootribution to provident and other funds
Cratuity
Saffrecruit nent
Staff welfare expens€

23 Fitr.ncc cost
Interest on bank bonowings
Interest on Inter Corporate Loan
Commission on Inter corpomte Guarantee
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured al amortised co
Interest on short payment ofadvance tax
lnterest on MSME dues
Interest expens€- Others

Year Ended
3l March 2019

Year Ended
3l March 2018

1,2t6.47

655.64

89.66

5,518.27

594.21

0.26

654.29

I1.32

25t.47

24.t6
0.53

1.85

5.26

5.25

0.47

5s.69
t.45

0.l9
t.7 t

0.l0
3.00

2.45

3.17

140

94.65 12.02

5,614.80

0.18

s60.29
8,021.15

317.86

47 4.t2
160.3r

3 17.86

0s6.26) (r57.5s)

320.73

t7.63

23.31

I1.99

3.93

23.03

258.35

1.32
23.4t

8.69

1.26

18.84

88.86

24.39

5. r8

72.85

1.70

,.r,0.68

0.1I

0.66

l r9.Et

\

19 Othcr income

lnterest on loan to r€lated parties
lnterest income on bank deposits
lntercst lncome on Rent Deposits(Notional)
Gain on sale of investment (Det)

Creditors wdtten back
Gain on sale of fixed asset (net)
Miscellaneous income
Commission on Inter corporale Guaraftee

835.59

18.50

296.t6
9.112.03 7.089.a2

7,215.M

89.31

663.39

6,215.27

100.6: 32r.8t

.15
Y,0!1\\ffi



Popuhr Megr Moton (lndia) Private Limitcd
Notes to the finsncial ststemcnts (contioued)
(All amounts in INR millions, except share dsta ard wher€ othenxise stated)

24 DcpreclEtion rnd a]nortbatior erpcnle
Deprccialion on p.ope.ty, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible ass€ts

25 Othcr.rpente.
Transpo.tarion charges

Rent

Advertising and promotional
Consumables
Power, waler ud fuel
Repairs and maintenancc . others
Work Charges
Pre delivery inspection charges

Insuaance

Communicalion
Printing & Sbrionery
Discount Others
Rates and taxes

Legal, professional and other consultancy
Travelling ard conveya[ce
Housekeeping and secudty
Dooation and charity

Corporate Social Responsiblity
Ollice expenses

Bad debts w tten off
Bank Charges

Net change in fair va.lue of financial asset

Loss on Stock in Flood
Provision for Diminution in value of investments

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Yesr Ended
3l March 2019

Yesr Ended
3l March 2018

21.33

0.92

24.s3

0.96

28.21 2s.19

26.55

91.46

37.16

14.89

8.30

20.62.

25.72

22.33

6.05

13.45

6.12

223.61

4.39

8.45

23.01

It.96
0.03

1.08

3.06

l.l7
0.79

0.80

59.0t

2.40

2.48

t't.23

75.22

34.18

t4.24
1.46

2t.13

25.85

17.36

3.86

13.31

5.67

16r.93

5.11

5.55

t7.70

t4.39
0.12

3.15

0.E8

l.0r
0.48

t.39
622.03 .r{E.13

(ocltl.25

0jis

effiN
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Popular Mega Motors (India) Privote Limitcd
Notes to the fiDrncirl statemcnts (cortitrucd)
(All amouns in INR millions, except share data and where otherwise stated)

26 Income tixes
Income tax asscts(liability)
lncome ta\ assets

Nct itrcomc tsr isscts/(liability) ot thc end

Defcrred trr &ssetv(lirbilities)
Defcrred income tex asseb

Trade receivables

Provision for gratuity
Deduction under section 35D

Total deferred incomc trx rssets
Defcrrcd income tsr lirbiliti.s

Property, plant and equipment and computer software

Tot.l deferred itrcomc aar liabilities
Deferred income tax assets after set off (Refer Note below)

Yerr Etrdod
3l March 2019

Year Ended
3l Msrch 2018

6.53 (35.30)

6.53 (3s.30)

0.46

4.82

4.4t

0.46

(2.16)

4.41 (2.16)

Dcferred tax assets and defeEed tax liabilities have been offset wherever the management has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against curent tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and defened tax

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.
ln assessing the realizability of defened tax assets, the management considers the extent to which, it is probable that

the defened tax asset will be realized, The ultimato realization of defened tax assets is dependent upon the

generation of future taxable profits dudng the periods in which those temporary differences and tax loss carry-

forwards become deductible.

Deferred tax asset in respect of unused tax have not been recognized on account of historical losses and

unfavourable cashflow for a prolonged period by the Company.

Ycrr Eodcd Ycsr EDdcd

31 Mrch 2019 3l Mrrch 2018

lncome tsx expense / ( bencfits )
Current tax
Deferred tax

Income trx cxpeosc

9.23

62.27
(l1.44)

(1.70)

50.61

2.80

50.83 53.J0

0.87

3.9 r

0.04

N--*r\
fia_ I \@ lil,1 KocHr l.w
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Populrr Mcgr Motorr (Indi.) Priv.tc Llmit.d
Not€s to the financial staterruDls (continucd)

(All amounts in INR milliorul cxcept sharc data ard where otherwis€ statcd)

27 Cotrti t lisbilities and commilm.rh
A! rt

3l Mrrch 2019
A! at

3l M.rch 2018

Cooting.nt li.bililies
Claims against the Cornpany not acknowledged as debls

Central Excise 3.03 3.01
KVAT 20t2 - l3 15.21 14.95

Income tax 8.08 8.08
Guarantc€ issu€d by b€nk on behalfofth€ company for which counter guarantee has been
isrued by the company

t5 28 15.28

Corpomte guarantees 270 210
Commitmetrts

Estimated amount ofcontra.ts remaining to bc cxecutad on capital account (nct of
advanccs) and not provided for. 821

Net rttributrblc to shrr. bold.rs brsic

ii) Wcighled .vcr.g€ rumbar ofcquity sh.r.! (besic)

Prrticuhrs
3l Mrrch 2019 3l M.rch 2018

Opening lalanc€ (Refer note 12) 5.00 500I
Efect of fresh issue ofshares

Weighted averag€ number ofequity shares of tNR l0 each for the yc{r
5.01 500

Earnings / (loss) pcr share, basic 22.88 19.50

B. Dilut.d crrDitrgs(los) par shar.
Th€ calculation ofprofit4oss attributlble to cquity share holders and wei8htcd averaSe
numttr ofequiry shares oulstandin& after
adjusEnent for the effecls ofall dilutive potential equity shares is as followsl

rttribulrbl. to shrr. bold.rs dilutGd

Prrlicuhrs As rt
31 Mtrcb 2019

A! at
3l Mrr.h 20lt

Weighted average numb€r of equity shares of IN R I 0 each for the year (basic) 5.00 5.00

Effect ol fresh issue ofsharcs 001

Weighled average number of equity shares of INR I 0 each for the ) ear (diluted) 5.0r 500

Earnings / (loss) per share, basic 22.88

Prrlicuhrs As .t
3l Mrrct 20I9

As .t
3l M.rch 20lt

(lossyprofit for the year, att ibutablc to the equity share holders I14 54 97.49

Parliculals As rt
3l M.rch 2019

A! at
3l Mrrth 20lt

Net profit{loss) for the year, attributable to tha cquity share holders 114.54 91_49

Net loss for the year, altributable to the equity share holders I l4:5Ll 91.19

Prrticuhrs As ra
31 lturch 2019

A3 rl
3l Mrrcb 20lt

Statutory audit 0.rl

29 Auditors' rcmun.r.tion included under and

Populr Mc8. Moton (Iodi.) Priv.t. LiDit d
Notc! to lhc fi!.trci.l rt.t.m.n8 (aonthucd)

(All amounts in INR millions, except shsre data and whore otherwis! slated)

2E ErrtriryJ06s) p.r shrr.
A. Brsic..rni[gs(loss) par sh.rc
The calculation ofprofiy'loss anributable to equity sharc holdeE and wcightcd averagc
numbcr ofoquity shares outstanding for the
purpose of basic eamings per share calculaitons are as follows:

ii) Weight d ,vcrage trumb.r ofequity shrr.3 (dilutc)

19.50

KOCHI

Prrticulrrs

4.08

0.01

0.431

aJ."""V
AccYv



Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited

Notes to the linancial ststements (continued)

(All amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

30 Operrtlng l€ases

The Company is obligated under non-cancellable operating leases for its ofEce premises. Total rental expenses
under such l€ases amounted to Rs.92,679,8821-(previous year: Rs.76,605,276). Future minirnum lease payments
due under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Prrticulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Payable in less than one year 97.31 76.45

Payable between one to five years 564.6t 307.86

Payable after more than five years 227 .70 216.64

ossA

q
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Popular lllega Motors (Indil) Private Limited
Notes to the Iinencirl st.tem.nts (coDtinued)
(All amounls in INR millions)

31 Enployce benefits
A Defi[ed contribution phr

The company makes contributions, determined specified percentage ofemployees salaries,in respect ofqualifying employees towardsprovident fund and other firnds which are defined contribution plans.The company has no obligaiion other than to'mat<e specified
contributions.The contributions are charged to the statement ofprofit and loa. * th"y u""*..

B Defined Benelit Plan

The company operates ce(ain posl_employment defined benefit plan which is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried oul by anindependenl actuary using the proiected unil credit method.The company accrres gratuity as per the provisions ofthe payment ofGratuity
A cr, I 972('Craruiry Acl)

Based on an actuarial valuation obiained in this respect,following table sets out the slatus ofthe benefit plan and the amounts recognised jn
the company's standalone financial statements as at balance sheet date.

Reconciliation of the ptujeded Delined benelit plon

Psrticul.rs
Defined Benefir PIan

Plan Assetq

Net Defi ned bencfi t lisbility/(Ass€t)
Liability for compensated absences

Total employee benefit laibility
Non-current defi ned benefit liability
Current defined benefit liabiliry
Other currenr assets(Balance with Life Insurance Corporation -Gratuity Fund (Ner))

C Reconcitiationofnetdefircdben.lit(assets)/liability

i)Reconciliaton ofpresent volues ofdel ed benelt obh4ation
The lbllowin table shows a reconci Iiation from the open balanccs to the closing balances lbr oet de

.ll Emplo-vee benefils (continucd)

s.\o

As rt 3l st Msrch
2019

44.44

33.26

I t.!E
7.t6

18.34

l7 02

t.32

As st 3l st March
2018

fined benefil(asset)/Liabilrr). and ils c

R) tti

Particulars l ear endcd 3l\l
\larch 2l)19

Yerr c ded 3lst
\larch 2018

Actuarial Gair/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive jnoome
-changes in fi nancial assumptions
-changes in demogaphic assumptions

Defircd bencfil obligation as al the beginning ofthe year

ence over the riod-ch rn

6.80

18.56

(2.04)

149

(3.10

Currcnt service cost
Pasl service cost

Interest cost

Bencfits paid

Re-mGasurcmcnts

Derincd bencfit obl tion as at the end oflhc .l.l..l.t

Year ended
3l Nlsrch 2019

Yesr ended
.31 \Iarch 2{) l8

Particulars

Plan assets et ahc beginning ofthe yG{r
Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid

Inleresl income

Re-meosuremenl!
- changes in demographic assumptions
- retum on plan asset

Balance at thc cnd ofthe

24.76

8.61

(2.041

206

(0. r3 )

f,J.26
Net dcfined benefit liabiti Il.ttt



Populor M€ga Motors (tndir) P vrtc Limited
Notes to the finincisl stetcment3 (continucd)
(All amouns in INR millions)

D Expenses rccognised in tha stsndrlon€ ststem€lt ofprofit rnd loss
Ex i! thc strndalona stltemcn( of 3nd loss

Rem€asuremGnls id othar com rahcnsivG incomG

E Pl.n Assca

Plan asset offie follo

The weighted avemge assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost as set out below;
AssumptioB regarding future mortality experieDce are set in accordance with the standard table - IALM 2012-14 (Lllrimate). The Companyassesses these sssunptions with its projected long_tcrm plans of groMh and prevalent industry standards. The discou mte is based onprevailing market yields of goverrurent securities

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indi.n rupees and there are no other forcign dgfined benerit gttuity plans.
(ii) Sensitivity rnaly3ii
Reasolably possible changes at fie reponing dale to one of $e actuafial assumplions, holding olher assumptions constant, would haveaffected the defined benefit obl igation by the amounts shown b€low

t

The company makes annual contribution to the Life Insunnce corpomtion of India ( 'LIC) of an amount advised by LIC. The companywas not informed by LIC ofthe investments made by them or the break up of the plan assets into various type of invest neflts.

Defined Ben.fit Obligrtion
(i) Aclurriel AssuInptlons

The following 8rc the principal actuarial assumptions at the reponing date (express€d as weighted average)
P{rticulars

Discount rate

Salary grou,th rate
Attrition rate

Ycrr ended
3l Mrrch 2019

1.000/0

r0.00%
14% p.a wilhdrawsl

rate at all ages

Yaar end€d
3l Mrrch 20lE

0.00%
0.000/0

0.00%

a duration ofdefined benefit o lon 6.29 0

Although the analysis does not
approximation ofthe sensitivity o

take account of the full distribution of the cash flows expected un<ter the plan, it do€s provide anfthe assumption shown.

C Hitherto' the annual contribution paid by fie company towards Llc group granrity premia wos treated as expenditure in the profit aod Lossaccount and the same was considered as defined contribution benetil. From the cureot yea! the company has made provision for Gratuity
based on actuarial valuation taken at the end offte year, afier cosidering the frrndiry towsrds Sroup gratuity premia till 31.03.2018. Thecontribution to the Group SraNity premia will b€ set off.gainst rhe provision as and whcn paid. No paylent rowsrds lhe goup graruity
premia was made during lhe year.

Yaar endad
3l Mrrch 2019

Ye{r €nded
3l Mrrch 2018

Particulrrs

Currenl servic€ cost
Past service cost
Net ioteresr on net defined liability
Employer Contribulion

6.80

13.80

0.66

(8.61)

12,65

Yerr anded
3l Mrrch 2019

Year cndcd
3l Mrrch 20It

Prrticulars

Acluarial (gain/ loss on defined benefit obligation
Retum on plan asset excluding interest income
Net cost

r.1t

( r.6l )
0.13

Yarr cDdGd

3l Mrrch 2019
Ycrr cndcd

3l Mrrch 2018

Particuhrr

Funds Life Insurance oflndia 33.26

As rt 3l Mrrch 20lg
lncrcrc l)ccrc$.

Particulsrs
As at 3l Msrch 2018

Increase Decrease
(3.06)

3.07

Discount rate (0.5olo movemen0
Future 5oZ movemen

3.24
94)
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Popular Meg, Motors (Ildi.) prlvrte Limited
Not.s to the st.Idrlotrc fiortrcl.l rt.tcncot! (contiou.d)
(AIl amounts in lndian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

32 R.lrted prrtles
l. Names ofrehted parties ond desoiplion ofrelatio\ship:
(a) E rtity heving sigtrificint influe&e or,!f lhe company

popular Vehicl6 aod Serviccs Limibd

(b) Subsidiarics and stcp down subsidiari€s
Visioo Moto.s prirlrc Limitcd

(c) OtlEr related parties l{hcte control exists
- Key management personDel and th€ir relatives (KMp)

Mr. Naveen philip, Managing Director
Mrs. Shalet John, Director
Mrs. Susatr Francis, Direclor
M.s. Maliai EapcrL Director
MIs. tlela phitip, Relarive of KMp

- Entities in which KMp has significant influenc€
popular Aulo Dealsrs privare Limited
Popular Auto Works private Limited
Keracon Equipmclts priiare Limited
Populrr Infotech privare Limited
Kuttukaran Trading Veatures

ll. Reloted party ttansactiottt
The has entcred into lhe transactions with related

Rent

ffi

Psrticulsrs Y r end€d

3lst Msrch 2019
Yerr elded

3lst March 20lE
Revenue ftom s

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited
Vision Motors Private Limited
Kutfirkaran Institute for Hum6n Resource Developmenl, India
Kuttukleran Trading Vertures
Popular Autoworts Private Limited

Autodealers Pu. Ltd

l.l I

0.00

0.02

1.49

2.38

0.01

0.00

Iocome from rent
Popular Vehicles ord Services Limited
Popular Infotech Private Limited

Popular Autodealers Pvt_ Ltd
vision Motors Private Limited 1.48

0.15

0.02

|.41

Naveen Philip
L€ela Philip

Vehicles and Servicts Limited

1.05

0.60

0.57

0.99

0.56

0.56
11. Related pa y transactions(Contirued)

Particulars Yerr cndcd
3lst Mrrch 2019

Y€rr e[ded
3lst Msrch 20lt

\\'ork Ch bour Cha lncome
Popular Aulo Dealeis priwtc Limited
Popular Autoworks Privste Limited
Vision Motors Private Limited
Kuttukkamn Trading Ventures

Vehicles and Services Limited

0.23

0.00

0.00

0. r3

0.2s

0.00

0.06



32 Relsted prrties (continu.d)

Particularc YG.r alded
Slst Mrrch 20lt

S!lc ofrssets
ar Vehicles alrd Scrvices Limited l.6r

Reprirs sod maintensnce

Popular Vehiclcs and Servicls Limited
Vision Motors Private Limited
Popular Auto Dcalas private Limited
Kuttukkaran Trading Ventures

Autoworks Private Limited
0.57

0.02

0.34
0.51

0.32

0.37

0.60

0.64Reimbursemcnt of Ex
Popular Vehicles and Servicrs Limited

Auto Dealgs Private Limited 0.2s
2.4s

(0.17
Purchsse of oods

Kuttukkarar Trading Ventures
Popular Auto Dealer Private Limited

ular Vehicles aDd Services Limited
0.41

0.0r

0.00

0.71

Purch&se of sssets

Vision Motors Privale Limited
Popular Auto Dealer Private Limited
Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Popular Vehicles and Servic.s Limited

Kutlukkaran

3.82
1.02

1.97

0.44

4.92

Relatcd p.rtiGs (cortinued)

Perticularc Yerr Gnded

3lst M.rch 2019
Yetr ended

3lst Mrrch 20lt
In t.lo8o Received

Vehicles and Se.vicrs LimitA t20.40
Interco rate loan re d
Popu lar Vehicles and Services Limited

Refer note No. 36SharesSettled conversion into E

Seltled via Bank transfer
92.91

I13.59
IIlterest on Inter Co rate Loan Prid

ar Vehicles and Servic€s Limited 24.39

Rcmuneration
Mr.Naveen Philip

17.63 I 1.32

II. Relared party transactions (continued)

Loans to related rties
Vision Motors private L imited

89.51
mclt ofLorn from Relrted p

Vision Morors Private Limited
85.01

Inler€st o[ Intea Cor lc Loan Received
Vision Motors Private Limited

24.16
lnvestment in Relsted pa

Vision Motors Private Limited
89.50

Short t.rm lorns rnd {dvaIces
Mr.Naveen Ph

s0)

te Gusrstee Commissiol Ex eIse

5.t8 t.70
Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Cor le Gurrrt€€ Commissioll Income
Vision Moto.s Private Limited 145 1.40

Y€rr added
Jlst Msrch 2019

Related parties (continued)

(



lll- Related pafly Balaflces:

Intcftorporltc loao

Vehioles and Services Limited
85.00

IntercorpolitG loan

Vision Motors Private Limited
85.00

TradG receivf,blcs
Vehicles and Services Limiled

Vision Motors Private Limitcd
Trade ble

Vehicles and Servicts Limited 0.96 0.77lnvestm €nt iI subsidisries
Vision Motors Private

I t3.00 23 50Intercst on Intarc loan ble
Vehicles and Servic€s Limited

0. t9
Interest oll te lorn rcceivrble

Vision Motors Private Limired
2t.7 4

1e GurraIltee Commission
Vehicles and Servicrs Limited 2.42

le Gusra Comote€ mtssron Rec.ivsble
Vision MotoN Private Limited

0.38

-ilr,

Inifl

JJ Previous ye'r figures have been regroup€d/ recrassified wberever necesssry lo conform ro cuftenl yea! prcseotalion.

\
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Popular Mega Motors (India) Privrte Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All amounts in tNR millions)

34 Interest on Inter-corponte loan
The Company had availed interest free loan of Rs. 85 million from its holding company in earlier years.

Based on the decision ofthe Board of Directors meeting held on 05.09.2018lhe Company has repaid the
loan from holding company along with interest @ 8.50% per annum from the date ofreceipt ofloan in FY
2015-16 till the date of repayment in February, 2019. The interest debited to the Statement of Profit and
Loss amounts under Finance cost towaxds this loan amounts to Rs. 24.39 million out of which interest
relating to the period prior to lst April 2018 is Rs. 16.90 million. Since the decision to repay the loan along
with interest was taken by the Board of Directors only during the current year, the liability has crystallised
only in the current year and hence, the interest for the period prior to I st April 2018 is not considered as a
prior period item.

35 Manag€riolRemunerrtion
Consequent to the holding compaay, Popular Vehicles and Services Limited, being converted into a public
company from July 2018, the Company being its subsidiary is treated as a deemed public company.
Accordingly, the Company is required to compute the remuneration payable to directors under Section 197

ofthe Act. The remuneration paid by the Company during the period amounting to Rs.17.63 Million based

on the decision of in the extra ordinary general meeting held on 13.02.2019.

36
(a)

(b)

Conversion ofloan into Equity Shares
As per the extra ordinary general meeting of shareholders ofthe Company dated 13.02.2019, sanction was

accorded for availing loan from the holding Company, Popular Vehicles and Services Limited @ 8.50%
per annum with a clause for optionally converting the loan including interest due into Equity Shares.

During the year, the Company received loan from its holding company amounting to Rs.120.4 million.
The option for conversion into Equity Shares was availed by the holding Company on 30.03.2019 and

consequently, the loan received amounting to Rs. I12.49 million along with interest due till 30.03.2019
amounting to lts.l.09 millin was converted into 12,34,638 Equity Shares ofRs. l0 each at a premium of
Rs. 82 per share. The said shares were alloted on 30.03.2019 as per valuation report obtained on
30.03.2019.The fair value ofthese shares as on 31.12.2018 was Rs.92 and hence the shares were alloted at

Rs. 92 per share.

As per the agreement daled 12.02.2019, sanction was accorded for granting loan to its wholly owned
subsidiary Company @ 8.50% per annum with a clause for optionally converting the loan including
interest due into Equity Shares. During the year, the Company has granted a loan to its wholly owned
subsidiary company amounting to Rs.89.5 million. The option for conversion into Equity Shares was
availed by the wholly owned subsidiary Company on 30.03.2019 and consequently, the loan granted

amounting to Rs. 89.5 million was converted into 89,50,000 Equity shares ofRs. l0 each at par.
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Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements (continued)

(All amounts in INR millions)

37 Insurance claim
The Company was hitherto recognising insurance claim on receipt basis.The same is changed to accrual
basis;accrual being reckoned based on subsequent receipts of Insurance claim and provsional liability
determined by surveyors. As a result of the change in accounting policy, the Company has recognised
insurance claim of Rs.53.71 million against loss of stock as income during the year ended 31.03.2019,
against loss of stock amounting to Rs.59.08 millions.The company has also considered Insurance claim of
Rs.1.7l millions against loss of assets which is adjusted agianst the written down value of the respective
assets.

38 Assets held for Sale
Pursuant to the Extraordinary General meeting of the company dated l3th February 2019, the Board of
directors has obtained the approval to sell / transfer / dispose offthe Land & Building (Re. Sy. No. 100/4-2
to 4/8) housing the company's service center and Land & Building (Re. Sy. No. lll/l) housing the
Company's Sales Showroom at Trivandrum. The company had availed credit facilities from Kotak
Mahindra Bank mortgaging the above-mentioned properties. The Bank vide letter dated 22nd November
2018 has given its NOC for the transfer of the said property. The book value of the land is Rs.9.l0
millions and written down value of the building as on 31.03.2018 is Rs. I l.3l millions. The sale is
expected to be completed within a period ofone year.

As per our report ofeven date attached

For PSDY & Associates
Chartered Ac tants (FRN 010625S)

Sreeniv PR (M. No.:213413)

for and on behalfofthe Board of Directors of
Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited

N ilip Shalet John
Managing D

\

,

DIN : 000188

Director
DIN : 00018829
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MaDaging Partne

Place: Kochi
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A.

Popular Mega Motors (lndia) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

I.Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts in Indian rupees' millions)

l.l Company overvierv

Popular Mega Motors ([ndia) Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated in 1997 as a Private
Limited Company. The Company is engaged in the business olsale and service of commercial vehicles,
sale ofspare pafts and accessories, The Company is headquartered in Kochi, India and has operations in
Kerala and Tamil Nadu

1.2 Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 norified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the'Act'), as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details of Company's accounting policies are included in Note 1.3.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the company's
functional currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cases where ever fair
value is applicable.

Use ofestimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has madejudgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts ol assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS l7 L d related Intelpretations. The Standard

C

D

t,

s

s

sets out the principles for the recognition, measurem ion and disclosure of leases lor both

B.

E. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ind AS I16, Leases

On March 30,2019, Ministry of Corporate Aflairs has notified Ind AS I 16, Leases. Ind AS ll6



Popul8r Mega Motor3 (India) Privste Limited
Notes to the financial strtements (continued)

parties to a contract i'e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS I 16 introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with-a term of more thai
twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Cunently, operating lease expenses are
charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also 

-contains 
Jnhanced disclosure

requirements for lessees. Ind AS I l6 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements
in lnd AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind, AS I 16 is annual periods beginning on or after April l, 2019.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

. Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS g
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errbrs

o Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial application

a

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value ofthe
remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset
either as:

o Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted at lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount ofany prepaid or accrued lease
payments related to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediat"ly b"fo.e the date of
initial application

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods. However, the company is in the
process of identifying the impact ofthe Accounting Standard on the Financial Statements.

1.3 Significantaccountingpolicies

1.3.1 Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany
Cost ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, road taxes after deducting trade discounts ani relates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working iondition for its intended use ani
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoiing the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item t-o rvorking condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and resioring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts ofan item of prope(y, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) ofproperty, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal ofan item ofproperty, plantang equipment is recognized in profit or loss

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date are



Popular Mega Motors (Itrdia) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

shown under other non-current assets. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at each
balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of those fixed
assets that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized.
other bonowing costs are accounted as an expense in the statement ofprofit and loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally
recognized in the profit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful lives
of assets.

The estimated useful lives of items ofproperty, plant and equipment are as follows:

Class of Assets Revised Life
Buil Owned) 60 60

60 60
Motor Cars 5 5
Motor Cycles and Trucks 5 5
o lCe Equipments 5 5
Plant and Machinerv 15 15
Tools and Equipments 15
Electrical fittings l0 l0
Furniture and fittings 10 10

Computer equipment J 3

* For the above mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given
above best represent the useful lives of these assets based on intemal assessment and supportJd by
technical advice, where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under part
C of Schedule II of the Companies Act,2013.

1.3.2 Intangible assets:

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible
assets are amortized over their respective individuat estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and ii included in
amortization in profit or loss. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

(;

V

Class of

assets

Years

Software 3

Goodwill

v

Previous Life

Building (Leased)

15
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Popular Mega Motors (Itrdi8) Privttc Limited
Notes to the fitrancial statements (continued)

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end ofeach financial vear
and adjusted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

1.3.3 Employee benefits

S hort - t e r m e mploye e b e neJi t s

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are
classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-
gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounled basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recogrized for the amount expected to be
paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, ifthe Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result ofpast service provided by the employee and the amount ofobligation
can be estimated reliably.

P os t- e m pl oy me nt b e nefr t s

Defi ned contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
Contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constnrctive obligation to pay n:rttrer
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Govemment administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
future payment is available.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect ofdefined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods and discounting that
amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, rvhich comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense
on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit

The company is covered under the Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of lndia for
future payments of Gratuity as determined on actuarial basis by LIC of India. The contribution is
debited to gratuity payable.

DeJined benefit plans

lt tt)ot )*g 1
5



Popular Mega Motors (India) Private Limited
Notes to the financial strtements (continued)

liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or [oss.

Other long term employee benefits

The company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in retum for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of
any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement gains or losses are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

1.3.4 Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obtigations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.
Before such a provision is made, the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract.

1.3.5 Revenue
Revenue on sale of vehicles, spare parts and accessories is recognized when the risk and rewards are
transfened to the customer and is accounted net ofsales tax and trade discounts, ifany.

Revenue from services is recognized on rendering of services to customers.

Commission income is recognized when services are rendered and in accordance with the commission
agreements.

Discounts and incentive income is recognized when the services are rendered and as per the relevant
scheme/ arrangement with the service receiver. Trade discounts from principal/ manufacturer are also
grouped under discount/incentives. In respect of other heads of income, the Company follows the
practice ofrecognizing income on an accrual basis.

Insurance claims accounted on accrual; accrual being reckoned based on subsequent receipts towards
claims and provisional liability determined by surveyors.

The standard is effective from I April 2018. The effect ofadoption of Ind AS I l5 is expected to be

z.ttDL)W



Popular Mega Motors (Indis) Priyate Limiled
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

insigrrificant.

1.3.6 Inventories
Inventories are valued on the basis ofcost or net realizable value. whichever is less.
Cost for this purpose is arrived at as follows:
a) Vehicles, on Specific identification Basis.
b) Spares and accessories at retail method.
c) Accessories on FIFO method
d) Batteries on FIFO method
e) Goods .in Transit in respect of vehicl:es and spares are accounted in the books, upon billing and

dispatch ofthe same by the principal from theii factory/ warehouse and are shown irnder the f,eads
inventories.

1.3.7 Impairment

i) Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured
at amortized cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit impaired. A financial asset is 'credit impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows ofthe financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equat to lifetime expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life ofa financial instrument.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measuremenl of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

Prcsenlalion ofallowancefor expected credit losses in the balance sheel

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount ofthe assets.

lltrite-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off
ii) Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generatg independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CCUs). Each CG(trepresents the smallest group of assets that



Popular Mega Motors (Itrdia) Privste Limited
Notes to the linancial ststements (contitrued)

generates cash inflows that are largely independent ofthe cash inflows ofother assets or CGU5.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher olits value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments ofthe time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company
reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent tlat the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized

1.3.8 Leases

i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At
inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for
other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

ii.Assets held under leases

Lease of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the company substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. The leased assets are measured initially at an
amount equal to the lower oftheir fair value and the present value ofminimum lease payments.

Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership (i.e. operating leases) are not recognized in the Balance Sheet.

iii. Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognized in profit or loss on a straight- line
basis over the term ofthe lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, Lease
incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term ofthe
lease.

1.3.9 Recognition ofdividend income, interest income or interest expense

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the right to receive
payment is established.

lnterest income other than received from banks is recognized on effective interest rate basis and
Interest income from banks are based on statement received from banks.

The 'effective intsrest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or the amo(ized cost ofthe financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-im!-gi.r,9!) or to the amortized cost of the liability.
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Popular Mega MotoN (Indi8) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

l.3.10Income tax

1.3.10

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Income tax (Continued)
i. Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Minimum
Altemative Tax ('MAT') under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 196l is recognized as current
tax in the profit or loss. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate oithe tax amount
expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It
is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantivety enacted by the reporting date.
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legaily enforceabli right to
set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset ant settle the liabilitv on a
net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amorints used for
taxation purposes' Defened tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits.
Defele_d tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence ofunused tax losses is strong'evidence that
flture taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of rec-ent losses, the
Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it Las sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that su{ficient taxabte profit will be
available against which such defened tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized
or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Defened tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
flollow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Defened tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tai authority on
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settie current tax liabilitiesand
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
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Popular Mega Motor! (Itrdia) Priv8te Limited

Notes to lhe fitranci8l statcments (coutitrued)

1.3.1I Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incuned in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction ofan asset which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost
ofthat asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

1.3.12 Earnings/loss per share

The basic earnings/loss per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for
the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

The number ofshares used in computing diluted eamings per share comprises the weighted average
number of shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and also the weighted average
number ofequity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the
period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive eaming per share, only potential equity
shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are
included.

1.3.13 Cash-flowstatement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities ofthe Company are segregated.

1.3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity ofthree montls or less which are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in value
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Calculation for Deferred tax Expense

Current Year Provision

Add: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit (

2018- 19

10.93

0.52

tl .44

Particulars DTA DTL
WDV as per Income-tax Act 244.56

WDV as per Companies Act 231.93 (4.41)

Provision for Doubtful Debts 0.87

ROC filing Fee-35D 0.04

Provision for Gratuity 3.91

4.82 (4.41)Total

9.23Net Defened Tax Asset as on 31.03.2019
1.70Net Defened Tax Liability as on 31.03.2018

10.93Provision for the year
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Popular Meea Motors (lndia) Priyate Limited

IT Depreciation schedule 2018-19

PARTICULARS WDV as on

01.04.2018
ADDITIONS

DELETIONS TOTAL DEPRECIATIO WDV as on
31.03.2019More than 180 Less than 180 davs

Freehold Land 91.03, r 65 9 r.03, r65 9r,03.165
Buildings 10,7 4 ,53 ,9 59 t,30,39,0r4 12,04,92,973 100/o t,t3,97 ,347 I0,90,95.627
Plant and Machinerv 2,78,58,662 t6,36,167 48,59,268 I t,'t3,2't2 3,32,40,825 l5% 46,21,679 2,86,19,146
Motor Vehicles 4.07 6 4.0'76 40% 1.630 2.116
Furniture and Fittings 3, 10,28,074 t4,8 r,867 28,7 5,651 4,04,577 3,49,81,015 100/o 33,s4,319 3,16,26.696
Oflice Equipmcnts 41,08,063 5,21 .909 4,69,355 55, r 68 50,44,159 150/o 7,21,422 43,22,737
Motor Vehicles 4,99,t 4,065 50,80,255 88,00,705 7,60,638 6,30,34,387 150/o 87,95, t05 5,42,39,282
Computer Equipment 35,27.426 34,84,089 24,34,384 1,39,5 t3 93,06,386 40% 32.35,678 60,70,708
Goodwill t9,68,750 19.68,750 4,92.t88 t4,'16,563
Total 23,19 ,66,240 t.22,01,286 3,24,18,377 24,73,166 21 ,7 I ,7 5,7 36 3,26,t9,367 2{,,15,56,369
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PO

MOTORS ONDIA) LIMITED,
PULAR MEGA

Rcpon on thc Au(lit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompany ing Standalone finaucial statements of ular Mega Motors (In(lia)p
Prilate Limitcd ("the Compon!,'), $hich comprises the Balance,. Sheel as at 31" March 2019. thc
Staternent of Profit and Loss Statemenl of Changcs in Equin and Statcnrcnt of Cash FIos s lor the l ear
then cuded. and notes to the financiaI stalenlenls. including a sumrnan, of signihcant accounting policies
arrd olher cxplanatorr infornration

In our opinion and to the best of our iuformation and accordirg to the eriplanations givcn to us. the
aloresaid standaloue financial statcrrrents give the infornration required b] the Act tr thc nranner so
rcquired and give a truc and fair view in confonnitr \vith lhe accounting principlcs gencralh acccpted in
India. of the state ofallats olthc Compan) as al 31"1 March 2019. and PROFIT. changes in cquilr and its
cash flous for the r.ear cnded on ttat date.

Basis for Opinion i..

We conducted our audit in accordance rvith the Standards on Auditiug (Sfu) spccificd under sectiou
l'13(10) ol the Compiiries Act. 2013. Our resporsrbilities under those Standards are lurrher described in thc
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statcnlents section of otu report. We arc
indepcndcnt of the.Companv in accordauce lith the Code of Ethics issued bv the Institute of Chancrcd
Accountants of India together lith the ethical requirements that are rele\"nt to our audit of the lnancial
statenldnts under the prorisions of the Cornpanies Act, 2013 aud the Rules thercunder. and 1e |are
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance *.ith these requiremerrts and the Code ofEthics. We
bcliere that the audit evidence ue have obtained is sulficienl and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

lnformation other than thc Financial Statenrents an(l Auditors Report theretn

The Companr"s Board of Directors is respolsiblc for the Informatiorl othcr than thc financial statemcnts
and auditors rcport thereon. The said inlorntation comprises the inforuration ilcluded iu the Direcrors

Branches At: Chennai & Madurai

PSDY & Associates
Chartered Accountants
2nd Floor, # 94, Deepam

Jawahar Nagar, Kadavanthra
Kochi, Kerala - 682 020.
Phone No: 0484-2204873

08.07.2019
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Rcport (Other infornration). but docs not include the financial statements and our audit report thereon. Thc
Other lnfonnation is expected to be made arailable to us after the date ofthis auditors report

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infonnation and rve will not e\press any
form of assurance conclusion lhereon.

In conneclion *ith our audit ofthe furancial statemenls. our responsibilir]- is to read the other information
identified abole rvhen it becomes arailable. and, in doilg so. consider rvhether the other infornution rs

materially inconsistent wilh the financial slatemenls or our klowledge obrained in the audit . olher$rse

Wren rl'e read the other infornration, if rve conclude that there is a material misstatemeit t[erein, 1re are

required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance

Responsibility of Management and Those Chffged with Governance {or the Standalone Finmcial
Slatements

The Compall 's Board of Directors is respo[sible for the nutters stated in section 13.1(5) of the Conlpanies
Act. 2013 ("the Act") rvith respect to the preparalion of these sandalone liuaucial statements that gi\c a

true and fair view of the financial position, financial perfoouance;.changes in equitv and cash flows of the

Cornpanl in accordance q'ith the accounting principles gcnerally accepted il India. including the

accounting Standards specfied under section l33bfthe Act. This responsibititv also includes nraintenance

of adequate accouuting records in accordance rvith the piiirtsiors of thc Act for safeguarding ol thc assets

of thc Companv and for prevcnting and detecting frauds and other irregularities: seleclron and application
of appropriatc accounting policies: nraking judgments and estiuatcs that are rcasonablc and prudent: and

dcsign. implcmentation and rnaintenance of adcquatc intenral financial controls. that lere opcraling

eflectivell for ensuring the accuracy arrd completeness of the accounting rccords. rele\ant to the

preparation and presentation of the flrancial statenrent that gre a true and fair view and are frec from
rxaterial misstatement. rvhctlier due tofraud or crror.

hr preparing thc financial statemcnts. nranagcment is responsible lor assessing thc Companl- s abilit.r to
coutinue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable. nrattcrs rclatcd to going conccm and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless nranagemenl either inlends to liquidate the Companl' or to cqlsc

operatioiii. ir has rroiealistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Direclors are also responsible for oversceing drc company's financial reporting proccss.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statem€nts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about rvhether the financial statemeuts as a rvhole are free

from material rnisslatemenl. wlrether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audilor's repo( that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance. but is not a guarantec that an audit conducted in

accordance with SAs rvill allal's delect a material misstatement lvhen it e\ists. Misstatenlents can arise
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from fraud or enor and are considered matcrial if. indir.idually or in the aggregate. they could reasonabh,
be expected to inlluence the economic decisions ofusos taken on the basis of rhese financial statenlents.

As parl of an audit in accordance rvith SAs. rve cxercise professional judgment and nuintain professiolal
skepticisnr tluoughout lhe audit. We also:

Identifl- and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statcments. rvhether due to lraud
or error. design and paform audit procedures rcsponsile to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sullicient and appropriate to pro'idc a basis for our opinion. The risk of nor dctecrirg ;;i.;;i
misslatetneut resulting from fraud is higher than for onc resultirrg frour error. as fi?ud mal, involre
collusioq forgen. intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the oycrrrde of rlternal control.

obtain an understanding of internar control rere\ant to the audit il order io d6sign audit procedures
that arc appropriate in rhe circumstances. under section 143(3)(i) ofthe conipariie eit. 2013. rre are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether trre company has aJequate xlte,ur financial
controls system in place and the opcrating effecti\encss of such controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablcness of accountrlg
estirnalcs and relatcd disclosures made bl nlanagentent.

o Conclude on the appropriatcness of management's use.:of the goiug corccm basis of accounting and-
based on the audit elidence obtained. rrhether a matcrial unccrtailtl exists rclatcd ,o 

"..n1. 
o,

conditions that nt:tv cast signficant doubt ori'tlre Cornpanl's abilitr to contiruc as a going concern If
r1e couclude tlut a tlaterial uncenainn exists. le are requLred to dra$.attention iu ori auiito.'..epo.t
to the rclated disclosures in the financ.ial *ate ents or. il such disclosures arc inadequare, ,o nrodifr'
our opinion. Our conclusions -e bar"d o, tiie audit cvidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. Ho$evcr. future cvents or condirions rna\ cause the compan!, ro ceasc to continue as a going
coltcem

' Evaluate the ovEdall presgJolation, structure and content of the financial statelncnts- including the
disclosures' and *herher tile financial satements represenl the underlyrng transactions and eveuts in a
manner that dihieves fat prcsentation.

Wc comlnunicate lvith those charged rvith go\ enrancc regarding. among other ruattcrs. thc planned scope
and timing of the,sudit and signihcant audil findings. including any significant deficielcies in inrernal
control that lve idenli$ during our audir.

We also piroYidc those clurged with govcrnance rvilh a statenlenl that rvc hare complied $.ith rclerant
cthical requiremetlts regarding indepcndence. and to communicatc rvith them all relationships and othcr
matlcrs thal mar reasonabll- be thought to bear on our independence, ard rvhcre applicable. relatcd
safeguards.

SDY & Associates
Churterod A ountants (FRN 010625S)

et[61[1ot1 NNlqi
Sree n PR (M. No. : 213413)
Managing Partner
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Report on Other Legal and Regulaton Requirements

a. we l,ave sought and obtained all the information and explanations rvhich to tlre bcst of our
krouledge and belief rvere necessary for the purposes olour audit.

As required b"v the cornpanies (Auditor's Report) order, 2016 (,the order''). issued b1- the central
Govemment of India in terms of sub-sectior ( I l) of section l.l3 of the companies Act, i013, *e give
i, the Amexure a statemenr on the mafiers specified in paragraphs 3 ad 4 of the order. to the e*tent
applicable.

b

c

In our opi,ion. proper books of account as required b.v larv have been kept by lhe Conrpan\ so far
as it appears from our exantination of those books.

The Balance Sheet. the Sratement olprofit and Loss. changes in Equitv and rhe Slaremcnt ofCash
Floivs dealt rvith br this Rcport are in agreemcnl u ilh rhe books ofaccount.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone frranciAbeneL
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read\dthlki"
Rules,20l4. L ILlr

e. On the basis of the $ritten representatior*i receiued from the directors taken on rccord br the Board
of Dircctors. nonc ofthe drrectors rs disqualfied as on 3l 'Marclr 20l9lronr being appointcd as a
dircctor iu ternrs of Seclron Ir,.l (2) ofthe.Act.

'i:'

I With respect lo the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial rcponilg of the
CourpanY and the operating effecti\euess of such controls. refer our separatc Report in Anrexure

':l

g. With rcspect ar die o&er iiEtters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordancc rvith Rule I I
of the Conpanies ({udit and Auditors) Rules. 201,1, in our opinio, and to thc best of our
infor0ration and according to thc explaMtions gi\.en to us:

i. The Comtrnnv has disclosed the impact ofpending litigarions on its fi1a1cial position in its':i.. , :. fiiancial statements Refer Note 27 to the financial statements.

comply rith the Accounting
7 of the Compames (Accounts)

ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
rvhich lhere rvere am' material foreseeable losses.

For PSDY & Associates
Chartered Ac tants (FRN 01062

g\tF tt
fs)
v'

S

N

reenivasan PR (M. No.:213413)
{anr qing Partner a

2. As required bv Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

iii. There were no arnounts u'hich were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Educatio, and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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ANNEX URE

1b) The fixcd assets have been physicalty verified by the managernenl at reasonable ir{eryals and uo
nutcrial discrepancies har,e been noticed on such physical verification.

The company lms not
ol dre Act. I

ir'.) In

(c) The immovable properties orvned by the company arc offered to banks/finarcial institutions as
secuiq.' for fie loans. Title deeds of these propcrties arc with banlVfinancial institurions. Hence le
have relied on the sanction letters of balls/financial iustitutions in this regard lo confirnl that the
companr holds a valid title

ii. ) In\ enlorics

The inventories have been ph.vsicallv verified by the managenrent during the year at reasonable intcrlals.
The discrcpancies noliced on phl sical vcrification of stock wcre not material haring regard ro thc si.,,c of
the opcration of the contpanl .

iii ) Loans and Advances

The company had granted a loau of Rs. 895 la\hs tojts wholll orrred subsidiarl, cornpany during the vcar.
The balance outslanding as on 31.03-2019 is itil. Being a l'holly orrrred subsidiary the provisiols of
sectior 185 are complied rvith. The leams and condirions are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of
the companr.

A*U"& 
,oans to parties listed in the register maintained und€r Section 189'1

ry

The compartl has given Corporate Guarantec to banks / financial ilstitutions agaimt loan taken b) its
uholll' owned subsidian company amounting to fu. 27 crorcs (Rs. 27 Crores). The closing balance of
coriixate guarantee as on 31.03.2019 gir cn to bank / firuncial insritutiom agairut loa[ takcn bi its $hollr
owned itbsidiary company is Rs. 27 Crores (Rs. 27 Crores). Bcing a tvholJl.orvned subsidialv companv.
the provisions of Section 186 are complied t.ith.

The companl has also invested Rs.895 lakhs in its uholl"v o*ned subsidian Companv .Thc Book yalue of
this in\€stnlent as on 31.03.2019 Rs. 1.130 Lakhs (Rs. 230 takhs). Being a rvholl.r' olned subsidiarr
company, the provisions of Section 186 are cornplied wi0r.

The comparry has not made any other in\estments. guaranlees during the year other thar the abole to
which the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 applies.

v

i.) Fixed fusets

(a) The Cornparry has maintained records showing particulars offixed assets including quanlitative derails
and location. The Company is in the process ofupdating the same.
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v.) Fixed Deoosits

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
accepted an)' deposits to which the provisions of Section 73 ro 76 of the Companies Act. 2013 and rules
made there under applies.

vi.) Cost Records

In our opinion and according to tlte information and explanations given to us. the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cosl records under Section 148(l) of the Conrpanies ect, zorj. ro" ri"
companv

\ ii.) Statuton, Dues

(a) The conrpan\ rras generall-r regular ut depositing rridr appropriate authoritres uudispuled s1uturon
dues lorrards Pror idcnt Fund. Ernprol ecs State Insuraacc. rnconre Tax. dutr of crstonrs. cST. cess
and other slatutory dues. uhcrercr applicablc . Therc ucre no arears of statuton dues as on lhc lasl
day ol the fi.ancial ycar for a period of more than six months from,ahc date thev bccame pavable.

@) According to the records of the company, the follorving
the date of batance sheet. 

Y%

Rb- V
ai$itlKatutory dues are outstanding as onv*..-

viii.)Reoayrnent of Loans

In our opinion and according to the inforrnation and explanations given to us, the company rras not
defaulted in repayment of interest and principal to banks and frnancial institutions.

ix.) Aoplicarion of funds raised

Nnmc of Statute Nature of Dues Anrount
(Rs. In
lukt $ .

Perirxl to which the amount
relates

Forum rvhere
thc dispute is

pending
Central Excise Act,

1944

Central Excise

I

30.32 0s.04.2005 - 31.08.2007 Commissioner

(Appeals)

Central Excise,

Customs &
Service Tax

Inconre Tax Act,

1961

Incomo Tax 65.39 Assessntent Years 2008-0q

2009-1 0, 2012-13, 2013-14 and

2075--t6

Commissioner of
hcome Tax
(Appeals)

Kerala VAT 68.82 2012-13 Assistant
Commissioner
Commercial

Taxes

w,
:\ -,

KVAT Act 20(13

R-



In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us- the term loans were applied
lor tlte purposes for uhich they rvere raised. Thc cornpany has not raised any funds tluough public offer

r.) Frauds

According to the infonnation and explanations given to us. no fraud- on or b1. the company. has been
no ced or reported during the year

xi.) Manaserial Remuneration

h our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

bcen paid in accordance rvith section 197 rcad with Section II of Schcdule V of

xii.) Nidhi Companv

has

.2013.

\en ompanl is not a nidhi

givcn to us. all transactions with the
Act, 2013 rvherever applicable and the

by the applicable accounting standards

to constitute an Audil Committee as per

05n September 2017

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
companr and hence this clause in not applicable to the company.

\iii.)Related Pa4! Tral$actions

ln our opinion and according to the infonnation and
related parties are in compliance rvith Section 188 of the

details ltave been disclosed in dre financial as

Being a wholly owned subsidiary. the ls

Section 177 read with general c

xiv.) Preferential allotment

no

tu

The company has not cntial allotnrert or private placenlent of sharcs or fullv /parth

\\.)

to conpanl has not entercd into anl non-cash transactions \\'ith directors or othcr

The company is not requbed to be registered under section 45-lA of the Resen€ Banli of India Act. 1934
and hence this clause is not applicable lo the Company.

t'or PSDY & Associates
Chartered A tants (FRN 010625S) s Asso

' ot[slr[o6t1
s

Srec nir3Sa n PR (M. No.:213413) eC)4\lvlanaging Partner

Acc

convcrtible debentures the -v"ear

tr

xr i.) Reeistration rvith RBI



ANNEXURN A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OT EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MEGA MOTORS (INDIA) ,PRIVATE
LIMITED. COCHIN

Rq)ort on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section J of Section l4J of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal frnancial controls over financial reponing of Popula: Mega Motors (lndia)
Pri\"te Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunctiou with our audit of the staudalone
financial statements of the Cornpanv for the ycar cnded on that date. ::' ::r

M:rnagement's Responsibility lbr Internal Financial Controls 
'i'

r:ir.
The Contpanl's nunagement is responsible for establishing and nuintaining internal finaucial controls
based on "the intcrnal conEol over financial reporting criterii eslablrshed bt the Companl considering the
essenlial components of intemal control slared in the Guidance Note on Audit of l[ternal Financial
Controls Over Firrancial Reporting issucd by the hstilute of Chartered Accounlants of India'. These
responsibilities include the dcsign. implementation and maintenance of adcquate intemal financial coutrols
that $ere operating cffectivel)' for ensuring the orderly and ellicient conduct oF its busincss. includilg
adhereucc to companv's policies. thp safegriardirig bf its assets. the prcvention and deteclion of frauds and
errors. thc accuracy and completeness of the accounring records. and the tinch' preparation of reliable
financial infomralion. as requirdil under rhc'Companies Act. 2013.

Auditors'Responsibilily 
ri:r.

is to e\ircss an opinion on the Compaur's internal financial controls orer fiuncial
<tur audit. Wc couductcd our audit in accordance rlith thc Guidance Notc on Audrl of

Intenml Firianciil Cor&ols Olcr Firuncial Reportilg (the "Guidance Note'') and the Standards on
Auditing. isarcd bv ,ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143( t0) of thc Conpanics Act. 2013.
to the e$eut applicable to an audit of internal financial colltrols. both applicable to an audit ol Intenul
Filancial Controls and. both issued bl the Institute of Chartered Accountants oflndia. Those Standards and
the Gui&rce Note require that \yc comply rvith ethical requirenlents and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reponing lras
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectivelv in all rnaterial respects.

Our rcsponsibility
rcporting based on

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls system over frnancial reporting and their opaatilg e{fectiveness. Our audrt of intemal
financial controls over financial reprorting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting assessing the risk that a material wealness exists. and testing and.eya'haQ€ rhe

. , l. l\!r^\r,
^-l '; .'i..\

\-. : \A/'i,\



design and operathg effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the
furancial statements, whether due to fraud or enor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suJtrcient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal hnancial controls system over furancial reporting.

Mcaning of Internal Financial Contmls Over Financial Reporting

A cornpanr's intemal financial control orer filancial reponing is a process dcsigncd to providc rcasonablc
assurance regarding the reliabiliti of financial reporting and tlle preparation of financial statements for
e\temal purposes in accordancc rvith gencrallv accepted accounling principles. A iompany's intcrnal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that ' .

1) pertail to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurate\' and fairly reflect the
Eansactions and dispositions of the assels of the companr:

2) provide reasonable assurallce that transactions are recorded as nccessar.\ to permil preparation of
filrancial statements in accordance lith genoalll accepted acc,ounting principles, and that reccipts and
expenditures of the comparry are being made onl1,. in accoidiirCe l ith authorisations of managenrent
and directors of the companr : and

3) providc rcasonable assurance regarding prel'ention or timcly detection of r.rnauthorised acquisition.
use. or disposition ofthe compan)'s assets that,could ha\c a rnaterial cffect ou the finallcial statemcnls.

Inherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Corltmls O\er Finnncial Reporting

Becausc of the inherent limitatiots of intemal financial controls ovcr financial reporting. including the
possibiliry' of collusion or imp:oper lranagernent override of controls, material nisslatemcnts due to crror
or fraud mav occur arrd not be detedted. Also. projections of an1' evaluation ol the intenul financial
controls oycr financidl reporriii! tir future periods are subject to the risk tlut the internal financial control
ovcr firuncial rcpofiing imvibccome inadequate because of changes in conditions. or tlmt tltc degrcc of
cornpliance with the policies or procedures mal deteriorate.

In ouioainion the Company has. in all material respects. an adequate internal financial conlrols system

over firdacial reporing and such internal financial controls over financial reporling were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019. based on "the irtemal control over financial reportiug critaia established

b}-' the Company' considering lhe essential conponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Or.er Financial Reporting issued bv the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of hdia".

For PSDY & Associates
CharteredAc untants (FRN 010625S)

tt*taoti
Sreeni n PR (M. No.:213413)

Partner

n()nopi

Managingffi
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9: Appendices - Standard Reports
Standard Report C.Ol

confirmation - compliance with rnstructions; Ethics & rndependence Requirements;Professional Competence; and lnvolvement ln niit Assessment

To: office:
BSR & Associates LLp Kochi, lndia
From: Office:
PSDY & Associates

Group's Name:

Period covered by the Group Audit:
Component,s Name:

Component kope (Type) of Work:
Period and/or as of date covered by
the work of the component auditoi:
Component l,tateriality
Component Performance Materiality
Firm name of component auditor

Kochi, lndia

les and Services Limited ("the

Date
6.7.19

Poputar Vehic
Group")

ll. Scope

when the type of work noted above, differs from the type of work specified in Appendix<A.01> (component and Audit scope Information oocur*nti, ptease exptain in i[! i"ri'u"*betow:

lll. confirmation of the ab ity to comply u/ith the Group Audit rnstructions andcooperate with the group engagement team

we acknowtedge that we have read the Group Audit rnstructions provided by you inconnection with the group audit. rn addition, we confirm to you the fotiowin! in idn,i".tionwith the group audit:

o We understand the work,. described in Appendix <A.01> (Component and Audit Sgep_elnformation Docurnent), the Group Audit instructions and'section t ortfrii Jocument,

NIL

l. ldentification

01.04.2018 - 31.03.2019
Poputar A,lega tr,totors ( I ndia) private Limited
("the Component,,)

Statutory Audit under Companies Act 2013
31 .03.2019

47,6O,W
7,14,20,W
PSDY & Associates, Chartered Accountants
("Firm of the Component Auditor,,)



to be performed by us and understand that the group engagement team witl use ourwork for purposes of the audit of the g.rp irr.r.?ir statenents.
r we agree to cooperate with you in connection with the audit of the Group financiatstaternents, inctudinq enabling ttre invoGnreni you consioer appropriate in our auditand providing vou aicess,..incluJ,hg ;;i;';;Js"s,.to auait docurnentation preparedin connection with the audit of thetro;;il;;;i".,ements upon your request.

' There are no reQuirements of confidentiatity or tocat [aws and regutations that prohibitor restrict your invotvennnt in our audit oa ou,. aommrnications io yo, o,. yorr'u.a"rr,
il..j;:ilflrl:f#iccess, to auoit oocunreniJidi'rur"uunt to *,u iroii o,r;e-croup

o we betieve that we witt be abte to compty with the requirernents set forth in theGroup Audit lnstructions. that are r.teri'ni to if,u *ort that you requested us toperform on the financiar information 
"ilt'" L"rp"r"nt, inctuding rneeting alt retevantreporting deadtines and comptying *itn tn"-r"i5*nt professional standards set forthby the Group engagernent team. -

Docurnent any exceptions and your response in the box below:

lV. Ethical and lndependence Requirements

As of the date of this memorandum and with respect to the Group, comprising of the parentcompany, its subsidiaries and associates, *u .oniirm itru't'we understand and witt comptv withthe ethicaI requirernents, inctuding iri"p;r;;;;;',."qrirlr"ntr, that are retevanr to theaudit of the group financial staterfonts ino ttr"-aao-iiiinu.t 
"tt,iiui 

r"qrir"#i,ir,'ii,.rioirgindependence requirements, if anv, OesciiUeA ,'in" c"r"rp oroit lnstructions.

We atso acknowtedge that:

o we understand that the. Group engagernent team has been requested to confirm itsindependence to those.charget *iti-gor.rni*u-oi i'ne croup, to provide detaits of attretationships between (the Group "n;"g"ru;fi"; and the component auditors) andthe Group, if any, that,_in-111.nr."r";iii*lj;dfi;;t, ;;y-r;;;o#;i;.#t.il",jil,, 
".b:.ur 

on, the Group- engagement team,s inAepeiJu-n.u, uno to provide detaits of thetees and the typeof other services provideo tJ tn" crorp, in accordance with the rutes

i[trrr:i,,d;::" 
promulsated oy reguratorlbool"-r,-u, described in the croup Audit

' we have read and are famitiar with the auditor independence and provision of nonaudit services rutes described in tne croup nuJit-lniiiu.tion, and have'provided a copy
:""itl*T'"" 

of the engagernent team of the component tisted in su.tion r oitti,

o We are not aware of any circumstances that may have threatened, or mav haveappeared to threaten, our independen.u; una *u'*iri :;i;;;t;"i"[ iilir'"^t

NIL

BSR&AssociatesLLp

k't
d\
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monitor our services to maintain our continued comptiance with these requirements atleast until comptetion of the group auOii- 
--- --"

o we have notified att individuat engagen*nt team members of the requirement toimmediatety report breaches o, sur["it"J nr"uJ"r or inaepenaencl p"'iLi"r"i" tn"component audit engagenrent partner.

' we understand our responsibitities to immediatety report breaches of independencepoticies to the group engagement team. and t" ."ri,tv with the retevant communicationand documentation requirernents regarding breaches Lf independence.

lf appticabte, document in the.box betow the reasons why these confirmations cannot bemade. Note that if an independence Urea.n *a, ia"nilfieO, actions to satisfactoritv addressthe consequences of the breach and an overatl irrru.v 
"r 

ilr" ,.ii"i,l"r]a ou*i"ir,]i"o 
",referenced here:

V. ProfessionalCompetence

,n connection with the work that we,.wiu perform on the component financial information aspart of the group audit, we confirm thut *e have- obtained an understandinq of theengagement' as described in.th-e Group Audit Instructionr, to a"t"rr-inu luit"i."i''io'"rirg tn"coltective experience of the engagement partner and engagement manager with primaryresponsibitity for the engagemenr ana of any other inJivrJuitiwrros" truinffiunJ er,p'eriencecontributes to the coUective abitity of the 
"6gug"nonit"um) 

whether:

o the cottective experience.of the engagement team, and the EQC reviewer, if one isappointed, is sufficient and appropriatl [o perform int 
"ngagement, 

or

. any safeguards or additionat actions are needed.

when required by, and as dexrrbed in, the Group Audit lnstructions, the retevant sections ofthe Assessment of rraining and Experience w"r6;p;; ;;;; bd a;irp[iJ.r]'piJo""o t"the group engagement team.

Document matters to be considered betow, if any:

BSR&AssociatesLLp

VI Regulatory environment in which the component auditor ope,rates

NIL

NIL

Does
audit
of ou

fe
Ian n nde tn rsove i thdepe a IVE ovebody rsee the

in ro ss nlo I n tcwh hpg we ra ate dn nmo iope to ther u ta itq vr Ua itsd 7

Yes / |,le

ffi\ud$'



BSR&AssociatesLLp

v[. Component performance materiality

NIL

A. We,have.read the Scoping ln-formation, as described in Appendix <A.01> (Componentand Audit scope rnformation Documentj of the croup ludit instructions and',-- 
"""""

att significant risks identified therein at the group [eve[ are noted as such in our eAudrr
:iligt:iffit 

fite (rracker) and we have ptanned audit procedures u,ui ui" ;;rp".il;i"
ra

OR,

r the fottowing significant risks identified therein at the group levet are not noted as such inour eAudlr engagenrent fite (Tracker) and, consequentiy, ,i" nuuu not ptinnei alli-'" "
procedures that are responsive to those riirc ror tire reiions stateo betow,

Provide comments below

B we have identified additionat significant risks of error or fraud in the component thatwere not identified at the group tevet. in <A.01> (Component and Audit Scopelnformation Docurnent) of the Group Audit lnstructions. 'c yes

6No

when the work you requested us to perform in section r consisted of an audit of the financiatrntormation of the Component or an urOii "i-"n"'*disclosure(s) in tt" flnuri-.i"t information of the Comoon 
more account balance(s) and/or

performanie ;";;"iit;il;crion I of this document. 
rent' we inctuded our component

ln evatuating the appropriateness of our component performance materiatity the fottowingInformation may be retevant to you:

Vlll. lnvolvement in Risk Assessment _ Significant components

As part of our involvernent in an audit_of a significant component we wourd tike to assesswhether you have identified any significant ,Lr., oi ,iiu.iut misstatemeni ;;-th;;r"upfinanciat statements that were. nbt i-nctuded ut pi.t oi ii"r" croup Audit rnstructions. Tothat end, ptease confirm the fottowing:

NIL

lf "yes", ptease provide a description of each significant risk of materia[ misstatement of the

,ii-



BSR&AssociatesLLp

group financial staternents that has been identified and the further audit procedures that youptan to perform to respond to each significant risk. 
- - - '

lX. Overallconfirmation

information that
I
may

Sreenivasan P. R

PSDY & Associates

lndia

we. wi[[ inform you, as soon as practicable, of any changes in the representations made aboveand any changes in our component performance'mut".iltity (in section v[) when performingour procedures on the financial information or tne component for purposes of the audit of thegroup financiat staternents.

We atso witl inform you, ,

with other aspects of the
as soon as practicabte, if we tater determine that we cannot compty
Group Audit lnstructions or if we become u*ur" oi oG, -

relevant to the audit of the group financiat state#nti.''

Risk lD: NIL
Risk short escn on NIL
Detailed descn tion: NIL

disclosures and relevant
assertions:

Significant accounts and/or NIL

Risk of error? NIL
Risk of fraud? NIL
Goi ng Concern risk? NIL
Related events or conditions
(goi concern):

NIL

Does the risk
effect on the

a pervasive
cial

statements (financial statement
level risks)?

have
finan

NIL

Approac toa ress the significant risk tivecn u n su tabs n as nd onc tro oc ued respr
NIL

Signed

omponent Partner NanreC

Firm narne

Country

,ffi
'(t"^\,-.-/^t)/\<-ad Accu;r,/-\=:_
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C.OZ Audit Report

The Component auditor is required to submit the Audit report in the betow givenper the tirnelines rnentioned in appenaix l.oi- di;#;;. format as

To: fice:
BSR&AssociatesLLp

From:
PSDY & Associates

Kochi, lndia

Office: Date
06.o7.2019Kochi, lndia

Subject:
Year end

Futt-Scope Audit Report on popular Group reporting package year ended 3I 
^,larch 

2019

Name of Reporting Entity:

(Portner's signature)
Charte untants (FRN 010625s)

Name of engagement partner pSDy & Associates

This report is intended sotety for use by B s R & Associates LLp in connection with its audit ofthe consotidated financial staternent of poputar croulii at and for the v.i, "ni"J 
--' 

:rA,larch 2019 and shoutd not be used for any other ilfi;. lo, ,rr" & Associates

Date of Report

Address
6.O7.2019 n PR (M. No. 213413)Sre

Managing Partnerznd Ftoor, Deepam, ptot No.9A
Jawahar Nagar, Xadavanthra, Cochin - 682020.

We have audited the attached Group reporting package of
lurted fth" ;ffi*v;i i"f the year enoii li-ilr.iffi
manasernent of popurar r"hi:g:9io s:M:es Limited i."opurar'Groufi,l iiiir.l,"''piJpirutionof consotidated financiat staternents ror $re veiienied 11 /r,.arch 2019 (,the year,). The
li1il.,..l ..reporting package is. tne responsi6,lity-;ith" Company,s management. ourresponsibitity is to express an opinion on this Financiat neporting eackage o"*J 

"",i "ri'iroit.
we conducted our audit in accordance with the rnternationat standards of Auditing andrequirernents as detaited in the 2019 eoputar croup auali inrtrr.tionr. .

ln our opinion, the financiat reporting package referred to above has been prepared, in atlmaterial respects, in accordance with the acc6unting poiic;es of poputar croufi ariJi, ,iituor"
i9! lh p':qqr. of preparing tne consotioiieJ iinu"li"i'ii"t".unts of poputar croup for theyear ended 31 tvlarch 2019.

Q>*

1\

t(0 (lr

\

lr 1l
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c.03 Highlights Completion Memorandum (HCr,{) _ Audit

Highlights co letion A,lemorandum - AuditTo:

BSRAssociatesLLp
o ce:
Kochi, lndia

From: o ce:
PSDY & Associates

t. ldentification

Group's Nam-

Kochi, lndia

Poputar Veh
Group")

ictes and S

01.04.2018 - 31 .03.201e

Date
06.o7.19

ervices Limited (.,the

Period and/or as of date
the Group Audit:
Component,s Name:

Component Scope (Type) of Work:
Period and/or as of date covered bv
the work of the component auditoi:
Component ltuteriality:
Revised Component ilateriality:
Component Performance r,tateriality:
Revised Component performance
Materiality (if applicable):

Poputar i,ilega rllotors (l ndia) private Limited
("the Component,,)

Statutotry Audit under Companies Act ZO13
31.03.2019

covered by

ll. Purpose

This memorandum is intende.rl 
.sotety for qse by you, the group engagement team, inconnection with your audit of the Gioup's rinanciai stitenrenis liererrici'to is tne groupaudit). rt shoutd not be distributed to eiiher the group oi .o.pon"nt-r"r"i"*ri'",. ,n"*charged with governance or any third purty. ro*"'*r;'yo, ,uy provide component or groupmanagement with a summary of information from' ihis mernorandum to facititate thediscussion of reporting matteri with component o,. jrorf ,unugernent and/or those chargedwith governance.

We con firm the fottowing:

[Check opplicoble bx and input additionol informotion, as apticoble]

We

tstandi sI ted sectng

have ed thmp structn on S a os tyou the teda f th doc me nu
xcee t fo the rsttep ma hat at oure a I n on o I th s

docume

2

47,60,W
47,6O,W

7,14,zO,W
7,14,lO,W

'hf
tS S9

)nl

\'('t
lKc l"!

not AS
The are listed betow:

your

wv/



lll. Outstandingmatters

lll.'l Significant unresolved matte^ identified by the component auditor

[Check opplicable bx and input additiot,al information, as oppticable]

+ Add more rows for each- ssue identified

+ Add more rows for each issue Identified

lV, Business overview

Refer inanciol sto tements ond notes to accounts.

NIL

cant matter to reportSignifi

No matters to report

Expected resol dateu no

Nit
NIL

Ifcf

icant matter to reportSignif

No matters tO rep6rt
Description of
or unresolved

signific
matter

ant outstanding
requested to be performed by the Group
engagement team

Prelimin ary findings to date and action

NIL NIL

E[Ef

FIna ana ytical procedures (eAu IT ac VIty 4 3 1 )

Re ad the fln ancra sta ment and d Isc tos re and rfo t ilu t t
pe rm ana yt cat procedu res toeva a e our conc uslons regard Ino icant dn I accoun d I o ures an ( b )asslst I n form I n n op I n on whe her the fIn an c Ia t st te tste na lss

a mer-l as a whote a tree ofma m tatemen ts. We a so pe rform v to st fo
t

ass I n rm I n an ove ra t tconc uston to heth r he fi t stananc I a temen ts are Conslsten t th UN dersta nd if It no
o

I h i p
o en t v I nc ud In reve n accoun con st de r ana yz n t e re tdt on sh l between

BSR&AssociatesLLp

lll'2 Signfficant unresorved rnatte^ to be forowed up upon by the Group engagement

[Check applicable box and input odditiomt informotion, os apticobte]

or
matter

of the in thefinanciat

(a)
formed

d

an
as

ourthe

.,j

,/.<l
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Summary of Significant Risks and Financial Staternent Level Risks

[Check applicoble bx and input odditionol infomotion, as licablel

+ lnsert new boxes f,or each issue identified

Vl. Summary of significant findings and issues

Vl.1 lfunagernent Bias

Attach fite or document berow any identified unusual or unexpecied retationships(incLuding unusual or unexpected transactions, events,- amounts, ratios or trends) thatmay indicate matters that have audit imptications, incrud'ing ,irr.i "i ,Jt"rritmisstatement, and in particutar fraud risks una fio* il.r"V 
-*ere 

resolved.

net income (toss ) and cashftow generated (used ) .by operations.

NIL

ns n f can nt ask dn o{d '( n na c a atest me IeVCt sk de tn f ed

lf the re is a signi
followin for each si

dlo
risk/fi

arisk n f fi na tanc sta mente t knseve m ete thep
cifi na t n nca la temensta levelt

rll

Risk short descrl tion: NIL

NIL
Significant accounts and/or
disctosures and re levant
assertion s:

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
ts:Re tose rva lveS t cfespon pe NIL

lf going concern risk was
identified, document the issue in
Section Vll

Goi ng Concern risk: NIL

Retated events or conditions: NIL
ReSU ts F n n S cn u n het oc sn derat no foo nco adtr e d ne ec n ssea ss nry

am an me n s du met n re rd n cca nou t nge j
Se t tma sega a atc leb Sto n f can rIt kssptp

na d n rncon k n aotgo o alc b to nfi at:ls n acl stapp te nIT}E t VC nsk )
NIL

[Check opplicable box ond input odditionol informotion, os applicabte]

nCo IS rde ta nIO Io man nme bt I tre a tod ste tea toage m re rtpo

l

to

riik:

Detaited <ie--ipEon.-

Estimate
Risk of error:
Risk of fraud:
Pervasive?

( rcc*t ).
L-L"*,gry

l;a,7
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Vl.z Significant unusual transactions and related party transactions

V|.2.1 Related party transactions and relationships

VI.2. 1. 1 Significant related party transactions

i;:',;#;":::1!::;'1":i,'#:ctions entered into bv the companv durins the vear was in

[check appricabre box and input odditionat informotion, os owticabte]

Nothing to report

to estimates to be reported,
,s of
,s

the re o ctf ons e ar tion mono tn b sa fgeme el taeose l t ht epl owfcu ng

uDoc nme t the ove af anal esti dic nase
s of tema fos r n toa of.rs b mPOSs ate ment b saNONE

Do<ument th
audit

e indicato rs of managernent bias andhowthey wEre addressed in the
NONE

(st nca t regn d[ate rt t sran tacpa onv nde t lef d?
Nothing to report

het ,sretf 5a , Ign
s

ronsrtyac tn I,re teda a tp oct on ten eI te het fol
and nature and
of related party
transaction

Nam ofe lare ted party
amount

NIL

Associated with a
signilicant iisk of error
and/or fraud?

NIL

significant accounts /
disclosures

NIL

Sisnificant related
party transaction?

NIL

Outside normal course
of business?

NIL

transactions conducted
on terms equivalent to
thosr! prevailing in in
arm's length
transaction?

Were related party NIL

,ZV(ff
O ?,:_'\a )

theDocument related orParq-es significant related transectiontPart}l not previouslyidentified or disclosed to U5 by managem€nt

'w#



BSR&AssociatesLLp

NIL

Y|..2.1.2 Conclusion on related party transactions and relationships

+ lnsert new box for each issue identified

V|.2.2 Significant unusual transactions and related accounts

[Check applicable box and input odditioml inlormation, os applicobte]

NIL

t clen at p nate audit nce has been obtain c etom the fo owe
Doc ument the impact
on the audit

NIL

tr were identifiedSignificant unusuaI transactions dan re teda uco nx
ng:

f the sre sa tnifican UN ualus antr sac com lete
s ficanign t unusua antr NIL

NIL
ign tre ted accounts

ns;scdi losu re and relevan t assertio if
lca able

NIL

NIL

NIL

lnvolved?Re lated NIL
Does the gnificant unusual

ve effect?rvasitransaction have a
NIL

ow was the matter addressed? NIL

NIL

evid_enqe been obtained that (.t ) the
significant unusuaI transactions that
we identified have been properly
accounted for and disclosed in the
financial statements; and (2)
financial statements contain

Has su cient appro te audit

the
the

NIL

statements with respect to related oartv
relationships and transctions achieve fair
presentation; and (2) related party
relationships and transactions have.been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed
in the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting
framework?

been obtained that (1) the financial

report

error and/or fraud?
a

a)r l+

..'\)



+ lnsert new box for each issue identi fied

Vl.3 Other significant findings and issues

[Check opplicable box ond input odditioml information, os appticoble]

+ Add more r0\,1,s for each ssue idenHfied

+ Add more rows for each issue identified

vr'3'3 
-significant modifications ofaudit strategy and to our pranned auditprocedures, including changes to ttre asseiseJilvei of noUU

[Check applicable box ond input additioml informotion, os aplicabte]

fgrnn
fai

nformi with

tion regardi s nlng tcanig
nu usua tran 5saction esse tia for a r
esen tationpr cn o thety

caIiP finable cnap al reporting
fram woe rk?
tf sufficient ropriate audit evi nce ash otn nbee bo tained omc tee ethpl fo nowi sct on auditDocument the NIL

tft reisasi tfi rted,or issue to be re li follseea st the nowtnding o-Significant
issue

on
for it

com € ua sPon a ch itsPprc udita
het r of the Udap

NIL NIL

Elf

Nothing to report '

there be. portea sts. maficantgni totter re d as€ple
ificant matters

NIL

IlfGI

ign mods f tcan f trca on

Reso I tiu no of lsSUe auc st

ILGf

BSR&AssociatesLLp

vl'3'1 significant findings and issues identified during review of interim financiarinformation

vl'3'2 Significant matters invorving.the serection, apprication and consistency ofaccounting principles, including retatea afctliures

[significont motters incrude, but ore no.t rimited to, occounting for comprex or unusuart!:nsaclpns, 
!_c-cgunting estimdtes, and uncertorintieiiiieu i{ redi":d;;;;s;;;;;,assumptions.l [check appticobre box ona inpui iiiitiiroi npriiiii, ;;';;;i;z';Lt"1

KOi d!
7

lsignificn
report

to reportmatter

to report
to report

a to



vl' 3'4. 
.Disagreernents among members of the engagement team (inctuding speciatists), orwith the, engagernent quality controt reviewer 

-oi 
o*rer reviewing purin.lr,- oi-otn"r,consulted about final conclusions reached on significant accounting or. a"ro'rtinl ;;id" -

[Check applicoble box and input odditional informotion, os oppticabte]

BSR&AssociatesLLp

modifica modifica
NIL

+ Add more rows for each issue identified

+ Add more rows for each issue identified

v|.3.6 circumstances that caused significant difficulties in applying our auditing
procedures

[Check applicable box ond input additional information, as appticable]

+ Add more rows for each issue identifieri

D rneree tn reto rtpo

Subject matter of
disagreement member disagrees with the

final conclusion, he or she
documents such

Ution af mtea

d reement
NIL NIL

Ef

lf there is i di lease I the follorvinement to be re
t matter disagreementSub

NIL NIL

I!!f

Sign ytotfican ifficutt report

lf the re fias s tcan ifficud beto re rted Iease stI eth foPo I oI WIp
Difficulties encounte red
performin audit rocedures
NIL NIL

EIr

tt

+ Add more rows foT each issue identified

NIL
NIL

report
a

or
with.a difference of
opinion

Nit

v1.3.5 Disagreement with component management about matters that, individually or in
aggregate, could be significant to the component's financial information or our
report

[Check applicoble box and input odditiorul information, as appticable]

Resolution

re port



lnformation that is contradictory or inconsistent with our finar concrusionsregarding significant findings or issues

[Check opplicable box ond input odditionol information, as apticable]

+ Add more rows for each issue identified

V|.3.8 Other significant findings and issues

pnclude relevont comment regarding revenue recognition, if r't arreody incruded ekewherel

[Check opplicable box and input additioml information, as apticabte]

BSR&AssociatesLLp

vt.3.7

+ Add more rows for each issue identified

+ Add more rows for each issue identified

v|.3.9 rssues with independence and ethicar requirements, including any team rotationrequirement

[Check applicoble box and input odditiornl informdtion, as applicoble]

S gnifica nt matter to re
to reportNothi ng

lf theretsa ant matter to be list thertedre

contradicts or is inconsistent with our
final conclusion

tdentifi tn formatio t

NIL NIL

EL

sig 16portn f cant f d n o ssug

Nothing to report

followinease listor beto re g:
ficant fin or tssue

NIL NIL

de nnde CE o e ht cape ssue to report

to bef het lsre na nde npe lcance or leased theistp fo now g

Nit NIL

TfEf

t)

t. Ass

.r-* \
\(e>\.---,/
'{Qonc.!

a

to report



BSR&AssociatesLLp

+ lnsert new box for each issue identified

vt.6

vt.7

Deficiencies in internar contror over financiar reporting identified at the
component level

Vl.4 Significant other matters

flnctude any other matters that may be retevant to the group audit, or that thecomponent auditor wishes. to. draw to the Group engagernent team,s attention,including exceptions noted in the written represent;tions ttat tne .ornpo*ii iroito.requested from component managernent]

fCheck applicable box and input additiomt information, as applicable]

vl.5 Misstatements and omissions in the financial statements and other errors in thefinancial statements - Summary of Audit Misstatements

NIL

Signi rtcant o r ma t

s tterficant other NIL

NIL

related assertions, if applicable
n unty NIL

NIL

NIL

addressed? :How \ ras the ttertTul NIL
NIL

ILIL

See Standard Report C.08

audit misstatements on net income -
ffect of a corrected and uncorrected

Fin

Nit NIL

ComrynyeTh re o het Ir tI ti son la msI n,go t5 ht e o ht eaga r hont those

l0

a matter to

oetaiteddeffi

ResulB / Findin8s 
-

Litigation and claims

[lyovide a description of any li.tigotion and cloirm affecting the component that courd
nave an tmpoct over <insert threshold>, if requested by the group engogement teamor that the component ouditor wishes to draw to t'he group engogement teom,sottention.l

I

ore no

w



disc Cont t Lio lities in t finoncial stotements,

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

BSR&AssociatesLLp

+ Add boxes for a al ues den d, as app cable

vr'8 l atters that resurted in or courd have resurted in a modification ofour report

[check appricdbre box and input additiomr information, as awticdbte]

+ Add more rows for each issue identified

Vl.9 Consultations

I-I

+ Add rows for additionat issues identified, as applicable

IIffisW,

assessrEnt

Name of Legal coliil
if applicable:

Significant-ccou6E7-
disclosures

appropriate audit
eviddncd with respect
to litigation; claims and
assessments been .

obtained?

not
following:

NIL

a matter

short
description

Detailed description Status of
consultation

NIL



vil.1

Other substantive procedures

Going Concern

vil

[Check applicable box and input additional information, as appticable]

vll.2 ldentified.or suspected instances of non-compriance with raws or regurations,including illegal acts and fraud

vll.2.1 lssues related to identified or suspected non-compriance, ifiegar acts and fraud

[Check applicoble box ond input additionot information, as applicable]

ot n ncern issue to re ort

ago nlconc fe n has d e list t followin8:

basis of accounting
of the financial
riate?

ls component management,s use o NIL

may cast significant.doubt on the
component,s ability to qontintue as a
going concern?

tDoes a material uncerta tnty NIL

Result audit ures:
NIL

group support beMlt needed
loc staa tuto rery portingl grou p
re 2 NIL

tions to or m c nomPo eme tn ant re tomanag ted o!g ng
sce n no cof ommu npti

concern matters ifa
NONE

nir
IXI

ldentified or su tiance, inon-co rta acts an fra ud to ie
Nothin to re rt

idef het re ha beenve tin fied sor us tedany non-co ncta elpec ac ats dnmPl aufr dlega
identified ease ls the Iot wtfo

appropriate audit evidence about
identified or suspected non-

Have we o ed sufficient

acts and fraud.2mplco la e

NIL

Iifrxr

ldentified or
compliance

suspected non: NIL

s ccaifi tn accou 5nts/ di I ifosu re NIL

2

BSR&AssociatesLLp

NIL

'?"7
ri

,)''\:
d

to

the going concern
in the preparation
Statements

our
NIL



BSRandAssociates

Standard Report C. 06
Summary of Control Deficienc tes

To:

B 5 R &. Associates LLp

Office:
Kochi, lndia

From: Office:
Kochi, lndiaPSDY & Associates

Date

06.07.19

Group's Name:

Period Covered by the Group Audit:
Component's Name:

Component Scope (Type) of Work:
Period and/or as of date covered by
the work of the component auditor:

Popular Vehicles and Servi
Group")

ces Limited (',the

01 .u.2018 - 31 .03.2019
Po putar A,lega A,loto rs ( I ndia ) 

private Limited
("the Component")
Statutory Audit under Companies Act ZO13

31 .03.2019

ll. Summary of control deficiencies

ID Short
Descriptio
n

Control
Deficiency
Descriptio
n

Control
Deficienc
y Type

(optional

Factors in
Evaluatin
g Severity

Seve

v
Accounts /
Disclosure
s

Assertions
(cEAVOP)

Gradation

lledium ' Resolved

at/

,lt /..,: I

aHi h

lssue reported earlier / Now
NIL

Key:
j& Low

Update on issue
NIL

Management comments
NIL

l. ldentification

Control issue

when the group engagement team has onty requested you to report significant deficiencies,
then you may inctude in the tabte above onty those controts deficiJncies that either (1)
individualty are a significant deficiency or (2) retate to one of the significant aelliiencies
described in the tabte betow under the titte ,.Aggregation"

As$



BSRandAssociates

lll. Aggregation

lf yes, complete the toble betow:

nificantdeficiencies in the aggregate indicate one or more
deficiencies?
Do identi

N.A

Description
ncy

table
iency lD(s) in

S

S reenivasan P. R

PSD & Associates

lndia

A

a-
l(0C.11

dAc

o_



C.O5 - Summary of Audit Differences

To: Primary Team From: SREEMVASAN P.R

PSDY & ASSOCIATES

POPULAR MEGA MOTORS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

The uncorecled diffgtrc6 8rca14 thln AMRT not d duing ou reviry/audir ofthe comoli&tiotr reporting p&kage of the above (cohpa!ry/subgroup) &e as foltuws;

asEr.qrr. of uDadisted rudir ifrer.ncd (befo& t t
Tlx .rlict or uDrdiulGd audit / nvie dir.nDcB

Agqrcgrr. of uDadiNred .udit /rcvi* ilir.rcr.es (sft r tir)

finrr.irl st ..hentrDouDE (B p.r linlt ffDrtrci.l!t t m.trls) (In Miltiom)

Un.djBted rudid..vi dilIercD..! sft r iar elTca.! . D.neniaE. oI fiMnci.l .tst m.nt lmount!

Local finecial @trirolld

Date:06.07.2019

1,866 39

00h 00/o

63.O7

oo/o

t614 Q11a)

00h

(25.63)

o,/o

a_

\v,
\q

1r )

,1
\
/

cAA

D6.ripriotr of mhrtit m.nrID IrcoDe .iLcr r.ording lo
lror Cnnrin (D.lr.c

Utr.djurt d udi, r.viN
dilf.cnc6 (b.roe r!r) in rh.
l]trlfur p.riod

2
NIL

l

6J2.19

oo/o

CK

-f.* T^*.
'l{n.r!lAsd'

ffi
i-f-t--r--t
i-1-t--t--i



C.05. Summary of Audit Differences

To: Primary Team From: SREENIVASAN P.R
PSDY & ASSOCIATES

POPULAR MEGA MOTORS (INDIA) PRJVATE LIMITED

The correct€d differ'Dces s'laIer than AMRT not€d d,*8 our reucvaudir ofrhc consolidation reponrng packase ofhe abovc (conprny/subercup) are as fo owsi

Sis,ed:

Local tuancial controtter

DaIe: 06 07 20t 9

ilA Ss.'

KOC rr I

a-

i. il

;t,l

leo' Ai

- l

I

=
_t

I

I 
^.rn 

{.t I tur

I t-r-

,

D.blt lCr.dh,
l.l.M Sh.rrt [l'..r - D.6h tcr..nI (.rh rb* fll;d . tr,.r* lpe.r.at

1.6ft, O.b[



BSR&AssociatesLLp

Standard Report C.OE
Events l,lemorandumSubsequent

To: Office:
B S R Associates LLp Kochi, lndia
From:

PSDY & Associates

L ldentification

Group's Name:

Period Covered by the Group Audit:
Component,s Name:

Office:
Kochi, lndia

Date

06.o7.2019

Poputar Veh
Group")

06.o7.2019
06.o7.2019

icles and Services Limited (..tlte

Component Scope ffype) of Work:
Period end date of Group Reporting
Package:

Subsequent Events Date:

01.u.2018 - 31 .03.2019
Poputar A,lega t,totors (India)private Limited
("the Component,,)
Statutory Audit under Companies Act 20.13

ln accordance with your instructions we performed a subsequent events review for the periodfrom the period end date of the Group Reportinl i;;k;;" to the subsequent Events Date,both of which are tisted in Section I above.

Eased upon the procedures we performed and the representations received from componentmanagement, we did not identify subsequent events for the period from the purrJ u,iJ o"t"of the Group Reporting package to the subsequent Ernt, outu that may require adjustmentto, or disclosure in, the Group,s financiat statementi.
Document any exceptions and your response in the box betow:

S ign

SreenJvasan P. R

PSDY & Associates

lndia

ll. Subsequent Events

ffi
\

I

o


